
HUGHSON PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

A G E N D A   
  

APRIL 17, 2012 
 

REGULAR SESSION 6:00 P.M. 
 

Council Chambers 
City Hall 

7018 Pine Street 
April 17, 2012 
Regular Meeting 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 
 
ROLL CALL:   Chair Alan McFadon 

Vice Chair Julie Ann Strain 
Commissioner Kyle Little 
Commissioner Jared Costa 
Commissioner Karen Minyard 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT/CALIFORNIA BROWN ACT 
NOTIFICATION FOR THE CITY OF HUGHSON 

 
This Agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability; as 
required by the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Section 12132) and the Ralph M. 
Brown Act (California Government Code Section 54954.2).    
 
Disabled or Special needs Accommodation:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, 
persons requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to participate in the 
meeting and/or if  you need assistance to attend or participate in a Planning Commission meeting, please 
contact  the City Clerk’s office at (209) 883-4054. Notification at least 48-hours prior to the meeting will 
assist the City Clerk in assuring that reasonable accommodations are made to provide accessibility to the 
meeting.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

RULES FOR ADDRESSING THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
Members of the audience who wish to address the Planning Commission may complete one of the forms 
located on the table at the entrance of the Council Chambers and submit it to the City Clerk. Completion 
of the form is voluntary. 

 
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
Members of the Audience may address the Planning Commission on any item of interest to the public 
pertaining to the City and may step to the podium, state their name and City of Residence for the record 
(requirement of Name and City of Residence is optional) and make their presentation.  Please limit 
presentations to five minutes.  Since the Planning Commission cannot take action on matters not on the 
Agenda, unless the action is authorized by Section 54954.2 of the Government Code, items of concern, 
which are not urgent in nature, can be resolved more expeditiously by completing and submitting to the 
City Clerk a “Citizen Request Form” which may be obtained from the City Clerk. 



 
Planning Commission Agenda 
April 17, 2012 
Page 2 of 3 

 

 
1) Review and Approve the Minutes of the Regularly Scheduled Session of 

March 20, 2012. 
  

2) Consider the adoption of Resolution No. PC 2012-04, Approving the 
Design Review for the Hughson Methodist Church Addition and 
Remodel Located at 2030 Fifth Street. 
(Staff Report w/ Agenda) (Motion Needed) 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

The Public Hearing process includes a staff presentation, a presentation by the applicant and 
public testimony (in favor, opposed & rebuttal).  Following closure of the Public Hearing, the 
Planning Commission will respond to questions raised during the hearing. 

PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER:   
 
No Public Hearing was scheduled. 
 
INFORMATIONAL ITEMS: 
 

3) What’s a Woonerf and Why Would I Want One? A Street is not a 
Conduit to Move Vehicles; a Street is Public Space.  
(Information Only) (PowerPoint Presentation) 
 

4) Jobs Housing Balance – 2005. 
(Information Only) 
 

5) Life Expectancy by Zip Code.  
(Information Only) 
 

6) Planning for a Better Future – California 2025.  
(Information Only)  

 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR REPORT: 
 
PLANNING COMMISSIONER REPORTS/COMMENTS:  
 
ADJOURNMENT:  
 
The next regularly scheduled meeting of the Planning Commission is May 15, 2012 
at 6:00 p.m. at the Hughson City Hall, 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 95326 
 
 
 



 
Planning Commission Agenda 
April 17, 2012 
Page 3 of 3 

 

 
**Special Note: 
 
The City does not transcribe its proceedings. Anyone who desires a verbatim 
record of this meeting should arrange for attendance by a court reporter or 
for other acceptable means of recordation. Such arrangement will be at the 
sole expense of the Individual requesting the recordation. Questions about 
this Agenda will be directed to City Hall. 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Dominique Spinale, or his/her designee,  do hereby declare under penalty of 
perjury that the foregoing Agenda was posted on the outdoor bulletin board at the 
Hughson City Hall, 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA, and made available for Public 
Review, prior to or on this 13th day of April 2012, at or before 6:00 p.m.               

Dominique Spinale, Deputy City Clerk 



HUGHSON PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

MINUTES 
  

MARCH  20, 2012 
 

REGULAR SESSION 6:00 P.M. 
 

Council Chambers 
City Hall 

7018 Pine Street 
March 20, 2012 
Regular Meeting 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 
 
ROLL CALL:   
 

Present:   Chair Alan McFadon 
 Commissioner Julie Ann Strain 
 Commissioner Kyle Little 
 Commissioner Jared Costa 
 Commissioner Karen Minyard 
 

Staff Present:  Thom Clark, Community Development Director 
    Monica Streeter, Deputy City Attorney 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT/CALIFORNIA BROWN ACT 
NOTIFICATION FOR THE CITY OF HUGHSON 

 
This Agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability; as 
required by the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Section 12132) and the Ralph M. 
Brown Act (California Government Code Section 54954.2).    
 
Disabled or Special needs Accommodation:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, 
persons requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to participate in the 
meeting and/or if  you need assistance to attend or participate in a Planning Commission meeting, please 
contact  the City Clerk’s office at (209) 883-4054. Notification at least 48-hours prior to the meeting will 
assist the City Clerk in assuring that reasonable accommodations are made to provide accessibility to the 
meeting.  
 

 
 
 
 

RULES FOR ADDRESSING THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
Members of the audience who wish to address the Planning Commission may complete one of the forms 
located on the table at the entrance of the Council Chambers and submit it to the City Clerk. Completion 
of the form is voluntary. 



 
Planning Commission Minutes  
March 20, 2012 
Page 2 of 4 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
Members of the Audience may address the Planning Commission on any item of interest to the public 
pertaining to the City and may step to the podium, state their name and City of Residence for the record 
(requirement of Name and City of Residence is optional) and make their presentation.  Please limit 
presentations to five minutes.  Since the Planning Commission cannot take action on matters not on the 
Agenda, unless the action is authorized by Section 54954.2 of the Government Code, items of concern, 
which are not urgent in nature, can be resolved more expeditiously by completing and submitting to the 
City Clerk a “Citizen Request Form” which may be obtained from the City Clerk. 

1) Review and Approve the following Minutes of the Regularly Scheduled 
Sessions of the Hughson Planning Commission: 
  

a) Minutes of the October 18, 2011 Session. 
 

b) Minutes of the November 15, 2011 Session. 
 
c) Minutes of the December 20, 2011 Session. 

 
d) Minutes of the January 18, 2012 Session. 

 
e) Minutes of the February 15, 2012 Session. 

 
Commissioner Strain/McFadon 5-0-0-0 motion passes to approve all of 
the Minutes listed (a) through (e) of Item 1.  

 
2) Consider the adoption of Resolution No. PC 2012-02, A Resolution of 

the Hughson Planning Commission Approving the Design Review for 
Plan 14 for Kiper Development in the Fontana Ranch Estates 
Subdivision.  
(Staff Report w/ Agenda) (Motion Needed) 
 

Director Clark presented the Staff Report on this Item. He reviewed the 
adopted Design Expectations that related to the design review with the 
Commission.  The Planning Commission deliberated on this Item. Staff 
believes that Plan 14 fits well within the neighborhood and 
compliments the other home plans, recommending that the 
Commission approve the design review of Plan 14. 
 
Chair McFadon/Costa 5-0-0-0 motion passes to adopt Resolution No. 
PC 2012-03, approving Design Review for Plan 14 for Kiper 
Development in the Fontana Ranch Estates Subdivision.  
 

3) Consider the adoption of Resolution No. PC 2012-03, A Resolution of 
the Hughson Planning Commission adopting the 2011 Annual  
 



 
Planning Commission Minutes  
March 20, 2012 
Page 3 of 4 

 

 
General Plan Progress Report, as well as the Annual Progress Report 
on Implementation of the Housing Element. 
(Staff Report w/ Agenda) (Motion Needed) 
 

Director Clark reviewed the 2011 Annual General Plan Progress Report 
and the Annual Progress Report on Implementation of the Housing 
Element with the Planning Commission. The Planning Commission 
discussed this item further.  
 
Commissioner Strain/Minyard 5-0-0-0 motion passes to adopt 
Resolution No. 2012-03, adopting the 2011 Annual General Plan 
Progress Report, as well as the Annual Progress Report on 
Implementation of the Housing Element. 

 
4) Conduct Annual Election Process to fill the positions of Chair and Vice Chair.  

(Staff Report with Agenda) (Nomination Process and Motions Needed) 
 

Director Clark reviewed the nomination procedures with the Commission and 
proceeded with opening nominations. Nominations were accepted on Chair 
McFadon as Chair and Commissioner Strain for Vice Chair. With no other 
nominations made, the nomination process was closed.  
 
Commissioner Strain/Minyard 5-0-0-0 motion passes to re-appoint Chair 
McFadon as Chair of the Hughson Planning Commission. 
 
Commissioner Little/Minyard 5-0-0-0 motion passes to appoint Commissioner 
Strain as Vice Chair of the Hughson Planning Commission.   

 
 
  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

The Public Hearing process includes a staff presentation, a presentation by the applicant and 
public testimony (in favor, opposed & rebuttal).  Following closure of the Public Hearing, the 
Planning Commission will respond to questions raised during the hearing. 

 
 
 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER:   
 
No Public Hearing was scheduled. 



 
Planning Commission Minutes  
March 20, 2012 
Page 4 of 4 

 

 
INFORMATIONAL ITEMS: 
 

5) An Annual Look at the Housing Affordability Challenges of America’s 
Working Households. (Report by the Center for Housing Policy)  
(No Action Needed) (Informational Only) 
 

The Commission discussed this item. No action was taken on this item.  
 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR REPORT: 
 
 
PLANNING COMMISSIONER REPORTS/COMMENTS:  
 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  Chair McFadon adjourned the meeting at 6:40p.m. 
 
 

 
 

________________________ 
ALAN MCFADON, Chair  

 
 
____________________________________ 
DOMINIQUE SPINALE, Deputy City Clerk 



cit 
 
 

CITY OF HUGHSON 
Executive Summary 

Planning Commission 

 
 
Presented By: Thom Clark, Community Development Director 
Meeting Date: April 17, 2012 
Agenda Item: 2 
Subject: Consideration of Resolution No. PC 2012-04, A Resolution of 

the Planning Commission of the City of Hughson Approving 
Design Review for the Methodist Church Addition and 
Remodel Located at 2030 Fifth Street. 

Enclosures:  1. Resolution No. PC 2012-04 
   2. Building Elevations and Site Plans for 2030 Fifth Street 
Desired Action: Adopt Resolution No. PC 2012-04, A Resolution of the  
   Planning Commission of the City of Hughson Approving  
   Design Review for the Methodist Church Addition and  
   Remodel Located at 2030 Fifth Street. 

 
 
Background: 
 
The Methodist Church has recently made application for Design Review pursuant 
to a proposed addition and partial remodel of the church campus. The Methodist 
Church is located at the corner of Fifth Street and Fox Road and encompasses 
multiple lots combined into an approximate 1.6 acre parcel.  
 
The applicant proposes to cover and enclose an existing courtyard that will 
connect the existing sanctuary to the social hall. This is currently a transitional 
area that is used for mostly social purposes and the church would like to protect 
this area from the weather by making it a lobby. The remodel work will include two 
new restrooms installed where the lobby meets the Social Hall; updating of the 
handicap parking area; some window replacement, replacement of some of the old 
stone veneer with new stone veneer meant to be less 70’s in design and instead 
have a more timeless look; as well as the addition of a handicap ramp to the front 
of the Sanctuary, which is raised. 
 
Discussion: 
 
Hughson Municipal Code Section 17.04.020 states in part:  

 
 

The Planning Commission or Planning Officer shall approve a Development 
Review application only if the following findings can be made: 



2 
 

  1. The proposed project is consistent with the General Plan, any 
applicable specific plans, any adopted design expectations or design guidelines, 
and the Hughson Municipal Code. 

  2. The proposed architecture and site design complements the 
surrounding neighborhood and/or district. 

  3. The proposed project is consistent with the general scale of 
structures and buildings in the surrounding neighborhood and/or district. 

Although staff is working on design guidelines for commercial buildings, we have 
not yet completed the project. We therefore have nothing to analyze this project 
against except the above Municipal Code section. In light of the fact that the 
secondary thrust of this project is to beautify the church, it is a fair supposition that 
it will look better after the remodel than it does now. I encourage the Commission 
to drive by the project site so you can see what the church looks like today and 
compare that against the proposed improvements.  
 
Staff believes that the Commission can make the above findings. Specifically, the 
addition and remodel is consistent with the General Plan and Municipal Code; the 
architectural and site design complements the surrounding neighborhood; and the 
project is consistent with the scale of buildings in the surrounding neighborhood. 
Staff therefore recommends approval of the design review application.  
 
Recommendation: 
 
Adopt Resolution No. PC 2012-04, A Resolution of the Planning Commission of 
the City of Hughson Approving Design Review for the Methodist Church Addition 
and Remodel Located at 2030 Fifth Street. 



Page 1 of 1 
Methodist Church Design Review - Resolution PC 2012-04 
 

HUGHSON PLANNING COMMISSION 
RESOLUTION NO.  PC 2012-04 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF  

HUGHSON APPROVING THE DESIGN REVIEW FOR THE METHODIST 
CHURCH ADDITION AND REMODEL LOCATED AT 2030 FIFTH STREET 

 
 WHEREAS, the Methodist Church has applied for Design Review relating to 
an addition and remodel to update and improve the facility and, 
  
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Hughson after careful 
deliberation and opportunity for public input does hereby make the following 
findings in accordance with Hughson Municipal Code Section 17.04.020: 
 
 1. The proposed project is consistent with the General Plan, any  

Applicable specific plans, any adopted design expectations or design guidelines, 
and  

The Hughson Municipal Code 

 2.  The proposed architecture and site design complements the  

Surrounding neighborhood and/or district 

 3. The proposed project is consistent with the general scale of 
structures and buildings in the surrounding neighborhood and/or district, and 

 
 WHEREAS, NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning 
Commission of the City of Hughson, using its own analysis and independent 
judgment, does hereby approve Design Review for the Methodist Church property 
located at 2030 Fifth Street. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Hughson Planning Commission at a 
regular meeting thereof, held on April 17, 2012, by the following vote: ()  
 
           AYES: 
 
 NOES:   
    
 ABSTENTIONS:  
  
 ABSENT: 
 
 
       _________________________ 
       ALAN MCFADON, Chair 
 
______________________________ 
THOM CLARK, Secretary 











94 77Modesto Unincorporated County36,730

Jurisdiction Households Population Employment

Modesto 73,489 206,962 78,310
Ceres 12,639 40,722 8,402
Hughson 1,915 6,091 749
Newman 3,091 10,083 1,056
Oakdale 7,496 20,299 6,005
Patterson 5,414 19,167 2,273
Riverbank 6,477 21,417 3,452
Turlock 23,074 67,510 23,738
Waterford 2,447 8,169 476
Unincorporated  36,730 113,740 47,521
Total Stanislaus  172,772 514,160 171,982

2005 Jobs Housing Balance
Households per Job Households Ranked Best to Worst

Modesto 0.940. 36,730 0.770. Unincorporated County 
Ceres 1.50 206,962 0.94 Modesto
Hughson 2.56 23,074 0.97 Turlock
Newman 2.93 7,496 1.25 Oakdale
Oakdale 1.25 12,639 1.50 Ceres
Patterson 2.38 6,477 1.88 Riverbank
Riverbank 1.88 5,414 2.38 Patterson
Turlock 0.97 1,915 2.56 Hughson
Waterford 5.14 3,091 2.93 Newman
Unincorporated  0.77 2,447 5.14 Waterford
Total Stanislaus  1.00



PLACE MATTERS FOR HEALTH  
IN THE SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY: 
Ensuring Opportunities for Good Health for All
A Report on Health Inequities in the San Joaquin Valley

MARCH 2012

© 2012 JOINT CENTER FOR POLITICAL AND ECONOMIC STUDIES

40123_JC_8_Page_PREP   1 2/23/12   5:38 PM



40123_JC_8_Page_PREP   2 2/23/12   5:38 PM



1

 for Health in the San Joaquin Valley: Policy Brief 
Prepared by the Joint Center for Political and Economic Studies, its Health Policy Institute  

and the San Joaquin Valley PLACE MATTERS Team
In Conjunction with the Center on Human Needs, Virginia Commonwealth University and the 

Virginia Network for Geospatial Health Research 

Introduction
PLACE MATTERS for health in important ways.  Research demonstrates that neighborhood conditions—
the quality of public schools, housing conditions, access to medical care and healthy foods, levels of 
violence, availability of exercise options, exposure to environmental degradation—powerfully predict 
who is healthy, who is sick, and who lives longer.  And because of patterns of residential segregation, 
these differences are the fundamental causes of health inequities among different racial, ethnic and 
socioeconomic groups.  This study examined the relationship between social conditions, environmental 
factors, and health outcomes in the context of the unique demographic characteristics of the area.   

Conclusions 
The San Joaquin Valley has a sizeable immigrant population with high poverty and low educational 
attainment.  Disparities in health status within the San Joaquin Valley reflect, in part, historical 
geographic patterns that have resulted in vulnerable populations living in areas where conditions such as 
exposure to environmental hazards create greater health risks.  The overall pattern suggests that socio-
economic conditions in low-income and non-white neighborhoods make it more difficult for people in 
these neighborhoods to live healthy lives. The study found that: 

The percentage of the population without a high school diploma in the San Joaquin Valley (30%) 
is more than twice the percentage of people in the U.S. (14.7%) without a high school diploma.   
The rate of premature deaths (years of potential life lost before the age 65) in the lowest-income 
zip codes of the San Joaquin Valley is nearly twice that of those in the highest-income zip codes. 
Life expectancy varies by as much as 21 years in the San Joaquin Valley depending on zip code. 
Areas of the San Joaquin Valley with the highest levels of respiratory risk have the highest 
percentage of Hispanic residents (55%), while areas with the lowest level of respiratory risk have 
the lowest percentage of Hispanic residents (38%). 
One in six children in the San Joaquin Valley is diagnosed with asthma before the age of 18, an 
epidemic level.   

Recommendations 
The overall pattern suggests that the clustering of social, economic, and environmental health risks in 
low-income and non-white neighborhoods severely limits opportunities for people in these communities 
to live healthy lives.  To address these risks the San Joaquin Valley PLACE MATTERS Team recommends 
that  elected officials, policymakers, planners, philanthropic organizations, and other stakeholders should: 

Re-orient the agricultural economy to promote social and environmental sustainability. 
Increase understanding and application of the social determinants framework among elected 
policy makers, community leaders and health, social service, education and community/ 
economic development professionals through professional education and other tools. 
Monitor on an on-going basis environmentally challenged and socio-economically vulnerable 
communities and increase public sector efforts to engage with—and invest in—these 
communities. 
Focus increased attention on enforcement of existing air quality standards and on helping 
individuals and communities understand and mitigate environmental risks. 
Seek to provide equitable expenditures throughout the school systems in the San Joaquin 

continued on page 4) 

40123_JC_8_Page_PREP   3 2/23/12   5:38 PM



2

The San Joaquin Valley, located in the Central Valley of California, is home to San Joaquin, Stanislaus, 
Merced, Madera, Fresno, Kings, Tulare and Kern Counties and had a combined population of 3,951,814 
in 2009.  In 2009, 48.5% of the population was Hispanic, and an estimated 21.0% of the population was 
foreign born.  Several census tracts in the western portions of Kern, Fresno and Tulare counties are more 
than 90% Hispanic.  In the western portion of Madera and southern and western regions of Kern many 
census tracts are over 80% non-Hispanic white.  The majority of the Asian population resides in San 
Joaquin County, while the Black population is concentrated in Fresno, Kern, and San Joaquin counties.  

   Map 2:  Racial and Ethnic Distribution, San Joaquin Valley, 2005-2009 

40123_JC_8_Page_PREP   4 2/23/12   5:38 PM



3

In the zip codes with lowest life expectancy, people may live to be only about 69 years or less, while 
people can live to be 90 years or more in zip codes with the highest life expectancy.  Zip codes with the 
lowest life expectancy tend to have a higher percentage of Hispanic and low-income residents.  Zip code 
areas in the San Joaquin Valley with lower median incomes suffer substantially more premature deaths 
than those with higher incomes; the rate of premature deaths (years of potential life lost before the age of 
65) for the lowest earning zip codes is nearly twice that of the highest income zip codes (58 per 10,000 
deaths versus 30 per 10,000).  A lower level of educational attainment also is a predictor of a high rate of 
premature deaths. 

Map 7: Life Expectancy by Zip Code, San Joaquin Valley, 2009 

40123_JC_8_Page_PREP   5 2/23/12   5:38 PM



4

(continued from page 1)

Valley, and in particular, to provide adequate resources for a quality education, including early 
childhood education, in those schools that serve poor and immigrant populations. 
Seek to create greater equity of resources and opportunities in both urban and rural communities 
while alleviating socio-economic, racial/ethnic, and gender discrimination. 
Adopt land use policies that reflect an emphasis on smart and equitable growth, facilitate access 
to affordable housing for poor and immigrant populations, and promote housing mobility to help 
reduce the clustering of immigrants in neighborhoods of concentrated poverty and in areas where 
exposure to environmental risks is highest. 
Ensure that all communities, including those that are unincorporated, have access to safe drinking 
water and the institutional capacity to manage water systems, and create a process for 
cities/counties to consider the infrastructure needs—including clean drinking water access—of 
disadvantaged and unincorporated communities in planning efforts. 
Increase availability of data on social determinants of health and develop ways to better assess 
health consequences of toxic water and other assaults on small rural communities. 
Increase the capacity of communities “… to hold decision makers accountable—not just the 
water service provider, but also local, regional, and state government officials”1 through building 
the capacity of grassroots/community leaders and through encouraging support for collaborative 
decision-making and advocacy to address regional challenges. 
Require public decision-makers and program implementers to consider the impacts of proposed 
actions on racial/ethnic equity in life opportunities, health and well-being and to adjust actions to 
maximize this goal. This equity in all policies approach should also be adopted by philanthropic 
and religious groups and other organizations serving the region.   

While there is a strong moral imperative to enact policies to improve health for all, there also is a 
powerful economic incentive.  A study released by the Joint Center for Political and Economic Studies in 
2009 found that direct medical costs associated with health inequities among African Americans, 
Hispanic Americans, and Asian Americans approached $230 billion between 2003 and 2006.   When 
indirect costs, such as lowered productivity and lost tax revenue resulting from illness and premature 
death, were included, the total cost of health inequities exceeded $1.24 trillion.  Thus, for both moral and 
economic reasons, we must address health inequities and their root causes now.   

About this Policy Brief:
This policy brief is based on a technical report prepared collaboratively by the Joint Center for Political and Economic 
Studies, its Health Policy Institute, and the San Joaquin Valley Place Matters Team, utilizing the research and data analysis 
capabilities of the Center on Human Needs, Virginia Commonwealth University and the Virginia Network for Geospatial 
Health Research (see note below).  The PLACE MATTERS Team includes:   

Mr. Ralph B. Everett, Esq., President and CEO of the Joint Center for Political and Economic Studies 
Dr. Brian Smedley, Vice President and Director, Joint Center Health Policy Institute 
Felicia Eaves, PLACE MATTERS Project Manager 
Dr. John Capitman, Leader, San Joaquin Valley PLACE MATTERS Team
Michael Wenger, Joint Center Senior Fellow and editorial consultant for report. 

. 

1 Francis, Rose and Firestone, Laurel (2011) “Implementing the human right to water in California’s Central Valley: 
Building a democratic voice through community engagement in water policy decision making” Willamette Law 
Review. Accessed 11/11/2011  http://www.communitywatercenter.org/files/WLR%2047-3%20Firestone.pdf 

40123_JC_8_Page_PREP   6 2/23/12   5:38 PM



40123_JC_8_Page_PREP   7 2/23/12   5:38 PM



Joint Center for Political and Economic Studies
1090 Vermont Avenue, NW, Suite 1100

Washington, DC 20005
www.jointcenter.org

This product is printed on paper that is 50% recycled, 30% post consumer, Elemental Chlorine Free (ECF), and acid free.

40123_JC_8_Page_PREP   8 2/23/12   5:38 PM



Budget

Climate Change

Economy

Education

Housing

Population

Water

Workforce

The Public Policy Institute of California is dedicated to 
informing and improving public policy in California 
through independent, objective, nonpartisan research. 

http://www.ppic.org/main/ca2025.asp
http://www.ppic.org/main/home.asp


BUDGET
CALIFORNIA

-25

-20

-15

-10

5

0

5

Bu
dg

et
 ($

 b
ill

io
ns

)

 

 

2012–13

2016–17

2014–15

2008–09

2010–11

2002–03

2004–05

2006–07

1996–97

1998–99

2000–01

SOURCE: Legislative Analyst Office’s Fiscal Outlook projections at the start of each budget cycle and estimates through FY 2016. 
NOTES: Figure does not show budget solutions to close the gap in past years. For example, in November 2010 the LAO 

estimated a $19.2 billion budget gap for fiscal year 2011–12. The 2011–12 Budget Act closed this gap (which had increased to 
$26.6 billion). However, the LAO now estimates that there is an outstanding budget gap of $3 billion for 2011–12 because tax 

receipts are lower than projected. The Department of Finance estimates a closing 2011–12 deficit of $4.1 billion.

BUDGET SHORTFALLS WILL CONTINUE TO BE LARGE

CALIFORNIA FACES SERIOUS LONG-TERM BUDGET CHALLENGES
California was hit hard by the Great Recession. In 2009, state tax revenues plummeted 14 percent from the previous 
year, compared to a 9 percent national drop. Slow economic recovery and the expiration of temporary tax increases 
widened the state’s budget gap: from fiscal years 2008 through 2011 the state faced record budget shortfalls of around 
$131 billion, roughly a third of General Fund expenditures. The legislature responded with deep budget cuts at a time 
of increased demand for Medi-Cal and other public assistance programs. Revenue projections turned out to be overly 
optimistic, resulting in even deeper mid-year cuts to social services and K–12 and higher education. 

Nevertheless, many of California’s budget woes are long standing. The state has faced gaps between revenues and 
expenditures in nearly every budget cycle since 2000. It contended with huge shortfalls during the recessions of the 
1980s, 1990s, and early 2000s. A series of budget-related ballot measures and legislative actions has complicated the 
state-local fiscal relationship. Voters often express mistrust of their state government and alienation from the budget 
process. In addition, the state faces many long-term challenges, including large unfunded liabilities for public em-
ployee pensions and rising health care costs and debt service obligations. Recent PPIC Statewide Surveys suggest that 
Californians are aware of the state’s fiscal problems and the impact of state budget cuts on local government services. 

HOW DOES THE STATE MANAGE ITS MONEy?
California spends more than the average state, and it collects more in revenues. It is also distinct in the way it raises 
revenues, relying more on income and sales taxes and less on property taxes. 

http://www.ppic.org/main/home.asp
http://www.ppic.org/main/series.asp?i=12


Other

Natural resource and environment

Corrections and rehabilitation

Higher education

Health and human services

K–12 education

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

1978 2011

To
ta

l G
en

er
al

 F
un

d 
sp

en
di

ng
 (%

)

	 •	 California’s	state	government	is	a	more	than	$200	billion	enterprise.
In the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011, the state spent $227 billion, of which $91.5 billion came from the state’s main 
discretionary fund, the General Fund. Another $91.5 billion came from federal funds (thanks in part to a large infusion 
of short-term stimulus funds). Special funds supplied $31 billion, and $13 billion came from bond funds. The vast  
majority of General Fund spending is for K–12 and higher education (more than 50 percent), health and social services 
(about 30 percent), and corrections (11 percent).

	 •	 California	is	a	moderate	tax	burden	state.	
In fiscal year 2008–09, the latest year for which comprehensive data are available, California’s state and local govern-
ments collected $251 billion, or $6,788 per capita, from taxes, fees, charges, and other miscellaneous sources. By this 
measure, California had the 11th-highest revenue burden in the nation. However, as a high-income state, California also 
has a large tax base. When state and local general revenues are expressed as share of economic activity or personal 
income, California’s ranking drops to 21st nationally. 

	 •	 Revenue	volatility	is	an	issue	in	California.
Tax experts have repeatedly urged California to flatten and simplify its revenue system by broadening tax bases, 
lowering tax rates, and eliminating certain tax preferences. California’s revenue system is highly dependent on 
personal income taxes (including taxes on capital gains), corporate taxes, and sales and use taxes. The income tax is 
volatile because it relies on a narrow slice of tax-payers whose earnings tend to fluctuate with the economy (in 2009,  
15 percent of tax filers—those with incomes above $100,000—paid 80 percent of the tax). Sales and use taxes are also 
tied to economic fluctuations—they were hard hit in the recession. Moreover, since the passage of Proposition 13, 
California has been less reliant than the rest of the nation on a relatively stable revenue source, the property tax. 

THE STATE-LOCAL FISCAL RELATIONSHIP IS CHANGING
In a process known as realignment, responsibility for key services and programs is shifting from the state to local govern-
ments. Funding these responsibilities over the long term may pose challenges.

	 •	 The	bulk	of	state	spending	goes	to	local	government	activities.
About 70 percent of general state revenues are transferred to local governments and school districts for K–12 educa-
tion, health and social services, public safety, and other programs. The remaining 30 percent finances state operations, 
including the University of California and California State University systems, correctional facilities, and administration. 

EDUCATION DOMINATES GENERAL FUND SPENDING 

SOURCE: California Department of Finance, Chart C-1.  
NOTES: Figure includes only General Fund expenditures. “Other” includes business, transportation, and housing; tax relief; state consumer services; and other expenditures.



 
 

 
 

 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

1978−79 2011−12

Pe
rc

en
t t

ot
al

 G
en

er
al

Fu
nd

 re
ve

nu
es

 (%
)

Other

Corporation tax

Sales and use tax

Personal income tax

SOURCE: State of California Revenues Historical Data, Legislative Analyst’s 
Office (www.lao.ca.gov/laoapp/LAOMenus/lao_menu_economics.aspx).  

NOTE: Figure includes only General Fund revenues.

	 •		 But	local	governments’	responsibilities	are	increasing.
California recently began implementing a major shift of responsibility from the state to the counties for nonviolent, 
nonserious, nonsexual felony offenders. Other realigned programs include court security, substance abuse treat-
ment, and mental health and child welfare services.

	 •		 Funding	realigned	programs	remains	a	challenge.
In 2011–12, the state directed a portion of the existing state sales tax ($5.1 billion) and vehicle license fee ($453 million) 
to local governments to pay for their new responsibilities. Many believe that these funds will be insufficient or that 
the state may reduce funding if its budget problems worsen; these concerns are bolstered by the fact that the shift 
decreases K–12 funding. Some propose giving local governments more power to raise local revenues, and Governor 
Brown wants voters to consider a permanent funding source for corrections in November 2012.

LOOkING AHEAD
Faced with enormous budget gaps during the recession, California relied heavily on short-term solutions (temporary state 
tax increases and federal stimulus funds). Unfortunately, the tax increases and much of the stimulus funding expired June 
30, 2011, and the Legislative Analyst’s Office projects ongoing annual budget gaps of $5 billion or more. Policymakers will 
face many significant long-term challenges.

Pension	funds	and	OPEBs. The state and many local governments pay monthly pensions to their retirees. In addition, 
retired public employees often receive health, dental, and other benefits collectively known as “other post-employment 
benefits” or OPEBs. Longer life expectancies and rising health care costs have made pensions and OPEBs a ballooning cost 
for state and local governments throughout the nation. The state’s unfunded pension liabilities have been estimated at 
$181 billion; they may be higher, depending on the modeling assumptions (including the choice of a discount rate). In 
addition, recent stock market declines may leave public pensions in need of additional contributions. Governor Brown has 
proposed pension reform that includes raising the age of retirement and switching to a hybrid pension and 401(k) model 
for new employees. 

CALIFORNIA’S	REVENUE	SOURCES	HAVE	CHANGED	OVER	TIME		

http://www.lao.ca.gov/laoapp/LAOMenus/lao_menu_economics.aspx


The Public Policy Institute of California is dedicated to informing and improving public policy in California through independent, objective, 
nonpartisan research. We are a private operating foundation. We do not take or support positions on any ballot measure or on any local, state, or 
federal legislation, nor do we endorse, support, or oppose any political parties or candidates for public office. Research publications reflect the 
views of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of the staff, officers, or Board of Directors of the Public Policy Institute of California. 

Public Policy Institute of California
500 Washington Street, Suite 600
San Francisco, CA 94111
T 415 291 4400   F 415 291 4401   

PPIC Sacramento Center
Senator Office Building
1121 L Street, Suite 801
Sacramento, CA 95814
T 916 440 1120   F 916 440 1121 
  
www.ppic.org

The series is funded by PPIC’s Donor Circle
v0212

Outstanding	debt.	Over the past decade the state closed most of its budget gaps through temporary measures such as 
payment deferrals, bonds, and loans from special funds. This has created an outstanding budgetary debt of $35 billion. In 
addition, the state borrowed $10 billion from the federal government to cover unemployment benefits and must restore 
$10 billion to K–12 education, after making cuts during the recession. Finally, the state is responsible for $81 billion in general 
obligation and lease revenue bonds for infrastructure and long-term investments.

Tax	reform. Californians may be unwilling to reconsider certain aspects of their tax code, such as the progressivity of the 
income tax or restraints on the property tax. However, the economy is also shifting to areas such as services and Internet 
or catalog sales. Sensible modifications to the tax code (such as extending the sales tax to services) may improve efficiency, 
equity, and reliability. 

Budgeting	for	volatility. Californians may also want to consider ways to budget for peaks and troughs in revenues, which 
appear to be a fact of life in the state. Improvements to budget forecasting could also help to orient voters and lawmakers 
to future needs. In particular, the state could expand the forecasting period from four or five years to ten years and make 
projections more transparent, highlighting the tough choices needed to maintain voter priorities.

Putting	fiscal	reform	on	the	ballot. Multiple efforts are under way to collect enough signatures to place tax increases and 
fiscal reform measures on the November 2012 ballot. California voters will likely be asked to decide on the level of govern-
mental services they desire and how much they are willing to pay for those services.

We	invite	you	to	dig	deeper	at	ppic.org.	 
Related	PPIC	resources	include:
Untangling the State-Local Relationship (a PPIC initiative)
PPIC Statewide Survey: Californians and Their Government
California’s State Budget
California’s Debt: What Does It Pay For?

This	publication	is	part	of	PPIC’s	Planning	for	a	Better	Future	project.

Contact	a	PPIC	expert:
Kim Rueben
Margaret Weston

http://www.ppic.org/main/home.asp
http://www.ppic.org/main/home.asp
http://www.ppic.org/main/statelocalfiscal.asp
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=1006
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication_show.asp?i=358
http://www.ppic.org/content/pubs/jtf/JTF_CADebtJTF.pdf
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=895
http://www.ppic.org/main/bio.asp?i=141
http://www.ppic.org/main/bio.asp?i=400
http://www.ppic.org/main/home.asp
http://www.ppic.org/main/ca2025.asp


CLIMATE CHANGE
CALIFORNIA

2005–2034 2035–2064 2065–2099

9   –

8   –

7   –

6   –

5   –

4   –

3   –

2   –

1   –

0   –

Te
m

pe
ra

tu
re

 in
cr

ea
se

 
(d

eg
re

es
 F

ah
re

nh
ei

t)

– – – –

SOURCE: D. R. Cayan, A. L. Luers, et al., “Overview of the California Climate Change Scenarios Project,” Climatic Change 87 (2008): S1–S6. 
NOTE: Projected temperature increase relative to 1961–1990.

Climate Change threatens California’s fUtUre
Increases in global emissions of greenhouse gases (GHGs) are leading to higher air and water temperatures as well 
as rising sea levels, with serious consequences for California. Air temperatures are projected to increase throughout 
the state over the coming century. Sea level is expected to rise 39 to 55 inches by 2100, and the frequency of extreme 
events such as heat waves, wildfires, floods, and droughts is expected to increase. Higher temperatures will result in 
more rain and less snow, diminishing the reserves of water in the Sierra Nevada snowpack. Even if all GHG emissions 
ceased today, some of these developments would be unavoidable because the climate system changes slowly. 

air temPeratUres are ProJeCteD to rise in California, esPeCiallY UnDer high emissions sCenarios

In the face of these threats, California has taken the lead in global efforts to reduce emissions. Assembly Bill (AB) 32, the 
Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006, requires the state to reduce greenhouse gas emissions to 1990 levels by 2020; 
this would result in emissions roughly one-third less than what would be expected under “business as usual.” An ex-
ecutive order calls for emissions to be reduced to 80 percent below 1990 levels by 2050. Reductions of this magnitude 
are needed on a global scale to stabilize the earth’s climate. California now faces a twofold policy challenge: finding the 
least expensive ways to reduce emissions and preparing for the climate changes that are expected even if emissions 
are successfully reduced. 

California is not alone in tackling this global issue. But its actions are crucial because they set an example for other 
states, regions, and parts of the world; others are already following its lead. The state must continue to forge new 
strategies, even though the nature and timing of climate change are uncertain and global efforts to reduce emissions 
may or may not be successful.

http://www.ppic.org/main/home.asp


Transportation
32.9%

Energy e�ciency
and renewables

28.6%

Cap and trade
19.8%

Other
1.4%

Forestry
2.9%

Local government
2.9%

High GWP measures
11.6%

California is Charting new territorY with its Plan to reDUCe emissions

 • California’s climate change plans generate interest . . .
The California Air Resources Board (CARB) is responsible for implementing the Global Warming Solutions Act. In late 
2008, CARB adopted a Scoping Plan that outlines the programs designed to reach the 2020 target. Because this is the 
first comprehensive plan of its kind within the United States (and one of the first such plans internationally), many are 
looking to California as a model.

 • . . . and controversy.
Analysis by CARB shows that AB 32 will have little effect on the state’s economy, but the Legislative Analyst has reported 
that the short-term impact on jobs is likely to be negative. Some legislators and interest groups have urged delaying  
compliance with AB 32 (and other environmental regulations) until the economy improves. In November 2010, voters  
rejected Proposition 23 by a large margin (61.5% voted no, 38.5% voted yes). If Prop 23 had passed it would have halted  
AB 32 implementation until unemployment remained at or below 5.5 percent for a year. This result suggests continued 
support for meeting the state’s climate goals even in difficult economic times.

 • new standards for passenger vehicles are key.
California adopted the first-ever greenhouse gas emission standards for passenger vehicles in 2004. These standards 
will reduce emissions from new passenger vehicles by approximately 30 percent by 2016. The federal government has 
set national standards that will match California’s by 2016 and has announced a process, coordinated with California, 
to set national standards for the 2017–2025 model years. 

 • a statewide cap-and-trade program has been adopted.
Despite some setbacks—including a lawsuit brought by environmental justice groups—California adopted the first 
GHG cap-and-trade program in the nation in 2011. Under this program, firms that would need to spend a lot to reduce 
emissions will be allowed to trade emission reduction credits with firms that can reduce emissions at lower cost. In 
the development of this program, California has reached out to other states and Canadian provinces, through the 
Western Climate Initiative, to develop a regional cap-and-trade program. 

 • California has also adopted other pathbreaking strategies. 
Adopted in 2008, Senate Bill (SB) 375 aims to reduce emissions by integrating investments in land use and trans-
portation to reduce driving. This bill provides incentives to achieve these reductions by easing environmental  

energY anD transPortation are the largest ComPonents of the sCoPing Plan 

SOURCE: CARB, “Climate Change Scoping Plan: A Framework for Change” (2008).
NOTE: GWP = global warming potential; gases with high GWP include refrigerants and solvents.



Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006 67

Emission standards for new passenger vehicles 81

Increasing the use of renewable energy 82

Requiring local governments to change land-use  79 
patterns so people drive less

Requiring an increase in energy efficiency for residential  74 
and commercial buildings and appliances 

Requiring industrial plants, oil refineries, and commercial facilities to reduce emissions 82

Cap and trade 54

% favor 
(all adults)

  

 

Emission inventory—
operations 

Emission inventory—
community 

Climate action plan 

100 –

80 –

60 –

40 –

20 –

0 –

Sh
ar

e 
of

 re
sp

on
de

nt
s (

%
)

– –

■ Plan to do

■ Already done

2008 2010 2008 20102008 2010

review requirements for qualifying projects. CARB adopted regional per capita GHG emission reduction targets from  
passenger vehicles for 2020 and 2035 in September 2010. Reduction targets for the four largest regions range from 13 
to 16 percent by 2035. In 2011, the San Diego region developed the first plan to hit these targets.

 • California’s local governments are also addressing climate change.
At least three-quarters of California’s cities and counties, encompassing more than 90 percent of the state’s population, 
are taking measures to address climate change. In many instances, these measures are also being promoted as ways 
to reduce energy costs and work toward broader sustainability goals. Local governments would like to know more 
about costs, benefits, and funding of different measures; they also call for greater clarity in state law.

DesPite the reCession, loCal goVernments haVe inCreaseD efforts to aDDress Climate Change

SOURCES: 2008 data from Hanak et al., “Climate Policy at the Local Level: A Survey of California’s Cities and Counties” (PPIC, 2008); 2010 data from 
Bedsworth, Hanak, and Stryjewski, “Views from the Street: Linking Transportation and Land Use” (PPIC, 2011).

  DesPite the reCession, Californians’ sUPPort for the state’s Climate PoliCies is strong

SOURCE: Baldassare et al., Statewide Survey: Californians and the Environment (PPIC, July 2011).

http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=849
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=946
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=993


California neeDs to PrePare for the effeCts of Climate Change 
California is well ahead of other states in developing information on the effects of climate change, but much work must 
be done to prepare for these effects. 

 • the effects of climate change are already being seen around the state.
Spring runoff from snowpack is occurring earlier now than it did in the first part of the 20th century. Some plant and 
animal species normally found in the southern part of the state have been observed in more northern locations.

 • sea level rise threatens coastal infrastructure, homes, and habitat.
Sea level is projected to rise 39 to 55 inches by 2100. The Pacific Institute finds that at the higher end of this range, 
1,750 and 1,800 miles of highways and roads along the ocean coastline and San Francisco Bay, respectively, are at risk 
of inundation. Coastal armoring (e.g., sea walls or breakwaters) can help protect infrastructure and homes along the 
coast, but these are expensive remedies and would eliminate some recreational and ecological uses of the coastline. 

 • water management faces challenges.
The diminishing mountain snowpack reduces water storage and increases the risk of Central Valley flooding. Rainfall 
variability is also expected to increase, leading to more frequent droughts and floods. In addition, sea level rise poses 
threats to fragile Delta levees, which are important for the state’s water supply. 

• Public health will be at risk. 
An increase in extreme events—heat waves, wildfires, and floods—will 
pose challenges to public health and the state’s emergency prepared-
ness agencies and healthcare infrastructure. Case in point: A prolonged 
heat wave in 2006 resulted in more than 140 confirmed deaths and a 
significant increase in emergency room visits and hospitalizations. 

• air quality will worsen. 
The San Joaquin Valley and the Los Angeles area already have some of 
the worst air quality in the nation. Increasing temperatures and other 
effects of climate change will worsen air quality, likely requiring addi-
tional pollution controls to attain state and federal air quality standards. 

• Biodiversity is under threat.
Climate change places an additional burden on many of the state’s 
plants and animals. As temperatures rise, many species will need to  
migrate to more hospitable areas. Current development patterns could 
hinder this movement and threaten extinction for some species.

• readiness to cope is variable.
Water and electric utilities have begun to consider climate change in 
their long-range planning and have tools available to develop adapta-
tion strategies. The Natural Resources Agency has developed a state-
wide adaptation strategy, and some regions are taking the lead in 
thinking about adaptation (e.g., San Diego and the Bay Area). But in 
areas such as ecosystem management and flood control, the institu-
tional and legal frameworks are ill-equipped to handle the changes.

 Inundation with 16-inch sea level rise 

  Inundation with 55-inch sea level rise

N

Pacific 
Ocean

San 
Francisco

San Francisco 
Bay

Oakland

San Jose
Miles

threatens the BaY area

sea leVel rise

 0 3 6 12

SOURCES: Map from San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development 
Commission; inundation data from Noah Knowles, “Potential Inundation 
Due to Rising Sea Levels in the San Francisco Bay Region” (California 
Climate Change Center, 2009). 

NOTE: The map illustrates the potential inundation of 16 inches of sea 
level rise by 2050 and 55 inches by 2100.



Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 re

sp
on

di
ng

 y
es

 Reducing emissions

 Preparing for effects

Jurisdictions Population

100 –

80 –

60 –

40 –

20 –

0 –

75

36

91

58

–

California’s loCal goVernments are less foCUseD on PreParing for Climate effeCts

SOURCE: Hanak et al., “Climate Policy at the Local Level: A Survey of California’s Cities and Counties” (PPIC, 2008).
NOTES: Survey covered 310 cities and counties. “Jurisdictions” shows the share of cities and counties covered, and “population” shows the share of sampled population covered by the action.

looking aheaD
To lessen the impact of climate change on California, emission reductions will be needed on a global scale; large reduc-
tions will be needed soon to avoid the most severe effects. Even with these reductions, the state needs to prepare for some 
inevitable effects of climate change.

 • Develop an integrated climate change policy. 
An integrated climate change policy that includes efforts to reduce emissions and plans to prepare for climate 
change will ensure that mitigation and adaptation policies are complementary.

 • achieve near-term greenhouse gas emission reductions.
Actions taken today will affect the concentration of greenhouse gases in the atmosphere several decades from now. 
Therefore, near-term emission reductions are needed to work toward future climate stabilization.

 • Undertake some “no regrets” measures now.
In some areas accounting for future climate changes in current planning will head off unacceptably high costs. For 
example, considering climate change in today’s land-use planning decisions could facilitate species’ migration as the 
climate changes. And limiting development in areas at increasing risk of flooding will avoid future costs. 

 • tap into local enthusiasm for undertaking climate action. 
The state should build on local momentum to implement state-level climate policies. Local governments’ experi-
ence and learning will be especially important in meeting the greenhouse gas emission reduction targets set under 
SB 375, the state’s transportation and land-use law.

http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=849


The Public Policy Institute of California is dedicated to informing and improving public policy in California through independent, objective, nonpartisan research. 
We are a private operating foundation. We do not take or support positions on any ballot measure or on any local, state, or federal legislation, nor do we endorse, 
support, or oppose any political parties or candidates for public office. Research publications reflect the views of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the 
views of the staff, officers, or Board of Directors of the Public Policy Institute of California. 

Public Policy Institute of California
500 Washington Street, Suite 600
San Francisco, CA 94111
T 415 291 4400   F 415 291 4401   

PPIC Sacramento Center
Senator Office Building
1121 L Street, Suite 801
Sacramento, CA 95814
T 916 440 1120   F 916 440 1121   

www.ppic.org

The series is funded by PPIC’s Donor Circle
v0212

we invite you to dig deeper at ppic.org. related PPiC resources include:
Driving Change: Reducing Vehicle Miles Traveled in California
Climate Change Challenges: Vehicle Emissions and Public Health in California 
Preparing California for a Changing Climate
PPIC Statewide Survey: Californians and the Environment
Climate Policy at the Local Level: A Survey of California’s Cities and Counties

Contact a PPiC expert:
Ellen Hanak

This publication is part of PPiC’s Planning for a Better future project.

 • Continue to develop information to reduce policy uncertainties.
Better information is needed to assess progress toward meeting emission reduction goals and the cost-effectiveness of policy 
options. Assessments of climate effects at a local or regional scale will help pinpoint vulnerabilities and develop priorities for 
adaptation. 

 • Continue to play a leadership role.
California has long been a leader on environmental policy, and climate change is no exception. This leadership is important 
in encouraging other governments to address climate change. Without global cooperation to reduce emissions, California’s 
economy and society may face severe consequences.

http://www.ppic.org/main/home.asp
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=948
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=756
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=755
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=993
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=849
http://www.ppic.org/main/bio.asp?i=72
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=895
http://www.ppic.org/main/home.asp
http://www.ppic.org/main/ca2025.asp


ECONOMY
CALIFORNIA

californians rEMain concErnEd about tHE EconoMY 
The recent recession reveals important fundamentals about California’s economy and shows where some longer-term 
challenges and growth opportunities lie. While the recession technically ended in June 2009, Californians are still worried 
about the economy: according to PPIC’s December 2011 Statewide Survey, 60 percent believe that the economy will face 
bad times over the next year. With unemployed Californians spending more time looking for work, on average, than ever 
before, and employed Californians working fewer hours, family incomes in California continued to decline well into 2010. 

The Great Recession and its aftermath have hit California hard—the statewide unemployment rate remains higher 
than the national rate, and California has more extreme levels of income inequality and a smaller share of families in 
the middle income range than the rest of the U.S. But long-term historical patterns are still the best guide to California’s 
economic future. Economies tend to return to growth rates and unemployment levels established over the long term, 
and major industry shifts—such as the transition from manufacturing to services—can take place over decades. 

california’s long-tErM EconoMic prospEcts arE fundaMEntallY strong 
The California economy generally keeps pace with the U.S. economy. California consistently experiences higher un-
employment and higher costs of doing business than other states, but these are explained or offset by the state’s 
strengths and are likely to remain permanent features of the California economy. 

SOURCES: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics and California Employment Development Department.
NOTE: Annual change in nonfarm employment, December to December.

8

10

6

4

0

2

-4

-2

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge

1950 1955 1960 1965 1970 1975 1980 1985 1990 1995 2000 2005 2010

California

U.S.

-6

california Job groWtH tracKs groWtH in tHE nation oVErall

http://www.ppic.org/main/home.asp
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=1005


14

10

12

6

8

4

0

2

U
ne

m
pl

oy
m

en
t r

at
e 

(%
)

1976 1980 1985 1990 1995 2000 2005 2011

California

U.S.

unEMploYMEnt is tHE HigHEst in dEcadEs

	 •	 california’s economic performance closely tracks that of the nation as a whole.
The broadest measure of California’s economic performance—employment growth—follows the nation’s growth 
rate very closely. Job growth over the past 30 years has averaged 1.2 percent annually for both the nation and 
California. In 2010, California employment grew 0.4 percent, just slightly below the national rate of 0.7 percent.  
Although California is emerging from the recession slightly more slowly, its long-term growth rate is likely to remain 
similar to that of the nation. 

	 •	 unemployment is persistently higher in california than in the nation.
In the recession, California’s unemployment rose much higher than the U.S. rate, even though employment 
growth was only somewhat slower in California than in the U.S. In October 2011, California’s unemployment was 
11.7 percent; the national rate was 9.0 percent. But California’s unemployment rate has exceeded the U.S. rate for 
20 years, even when its employment growth has surpassed U.S. growth, as it did during the technology boom in 
the late 1990s. This seeming paradox arises because California’s labor force grows faster than the U.S. labor force:  
the state’s economy generates jobs at a rate similar to the national rate, but this is not enough to keep up with Cali-
fornia’s faster-growing population. So California unemployment is likely to remain above the U.S. level even after it 
fully recovers from the recession. 

SOURCES: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics and California Employment Development Department.
NOTES: Monthly unemployment rate, seasonally adjusted. 

	 •	 labor market conditions have contributed to sizeable declines in family income. 
The trend has turned around since the peak of the Great Recession but California unemployment remains historically 
high. Moreover, in 2011 the average period of unemployment reached 37 weeks—the longest average since 1948, 
when this data was first collected. Workers have been employed for fewer hours, on average, and are less likely to 
work full-time than before the recession. Unemployment and underemployment caused median family income to 
fall 11 percent in real terms between 2007 and 2010 (for a family of four). Declines were especially steep at the low end 
of the income spectrum (22 percent), but high incomes also fell (5 percent). These shifts have led to a new extreme in 
income inequality: in 2010, California’s high income families earned about 12 times more than its low income families 
(as measured by the ratio of 90th percentile to 10th percentile).  



	 •	 california is a high-cost, high-benefit state.
California workers, on average, earn 12 percent more than the national average—even after adjusting for differences 
in workers, occupations, and industries. But output per worker in California is 13 percent above the national average, 
so California’s higher productivity fully offsets the higher average wages. All of California’s immediate neighbors—
Nevada, Oregon, and Arizona—pay their workers less and have lower output per worker.

	 •	 the “business climate” debate understates california’s strengths.
California consistently scores poorly on many business climate rankings that focus primarily on taxes and other costs 
of doing business. California’s economic performance is stronger than these business climate rankings alone would 
indicate. Businesses locating in California face higher costs but they also enjoy many benefits, such as the skill level 
of the workforce, the availability of capital and support for new business, and the amenities that make California an 
attractive place to live. 

groWtH Will bE unEVEn

	 •	 regional economic differences are dramatic—and persistent.
Economic differences within California are likely to continue. Unemployment tends to be higher in the Central  
Valley—sometimes considerably higher—than in the urban, coastal parts of the state. This variation is attributable to 
a different industry mix and to the faster-growing workforce in the inland parts of the state. Even among urban coastal  
areas, California’s regional economies don’t move in concert: aside from the recession, in most years some regions of 
the state grow quickly while others grow slowly or contract. Although the recession has hit inland California hardest, 
that region’s low housing costs will contribute to high growth of the workforce there. The working-age population 
is projected to grow more than 25 percent between 2010 and 2025 in much of inland California; in California overall, 
the rate of growth will be 13 percent. 

SOURCE: California Department of Finance.   
NOTE: California’s projected growth rate, by county, of working-age population, 2010–2025.

inland california’s labor forcE Will groW fastEst

Projected growth rate

0% or less

0.1%–10%

10.1%–25%

25.1% –40%

More than 40%



	 •	 Housing is still expensive and probably always will be.
Even before this decade’s real estate bubble, housing in California was much more expensive than in the nation as a 
whole. And although housing prices fell more in California than in the nation during the recession, housing remains far 
more expensive, especially in California’s coastal cities. In October 2011, the average U.S. home was worth $148,000; in 
California, the average home was worth $295,400, according to Zillow. Expensive real estate makes it harder for some 
businesses to locate in California and attract workers, potentially pushing growth out of state. However, housing prices 
inland continued to fall in 2011 much faster than coastal prices: a year-over-year decline of 9 percent in Modesto com-
pared to 2 percent in metropolitan San Jose, for example. The growing gap between high house prices on the coast 
and rapidly falling prices inland could accelerate the inland movement of businesses and households. 

	 •	 services will continue to grow; manufacturing will continue to stagnate.
Manufacturing accounted for only 9 percent of California’s employment in October 2011; its share has been declining 
for decades, and it will continue to be California’s slowest-growing sector. During the recession, the construction 
industry contracted most sharply. Once the existing housing stock has been absorbed by California’s growing popu-
lation, construction employment will rise again, although it will not reach its boom-time levels. The fastest-growing 
industries over the longer term are projected to be professional services, education, and health care; these are also 
the sectors least hurt by the recession.

SOURCE: California Employment Development Department.  
NOTE: EDD Employment Growth Projections, 2008–2018 (private sector only).

proJEctEd priVatE-sEctor industrY groWtH, 2008–2018

 

 

-5 0 5 10 15 20 25 30

 –

 –

 –

 –

 –

 –

 –

 –

 –

 –

 –

 –

 –

 –

 –

–

-15

–

-10

– – – – – – – –

Percentage

-9.3

-4.7

1.8

3.6

8.1

9.0

9.5

9.6

12.6

13.6

13.9

14.6

23.9

26.4

27.1

Manufacturing

Real estate and rental and leasing

Finance and insurance

Information

Transportation, warehousing, and utilities

Construction

Other services

Retail trade

Accommodation and food services

Administrative services

Wholesale trade

Arts, entertainment, and recreation

Health care

Professional services

Educational services



looKing aHEad
California’s long-term economic trends reflect strengths but also create pressures that policy must respond to. The most 
effective economic policies require accurate assessments of California’s economic performance, a balanced view of the 
state’s competitiveness, and a realistic sense of the state’s strengths and weaknesses.

	 •	 pursue policies to help create jobs and promote economic growth. 
Increasing full-time employment is key to California’s recovery. In the short run, hiring credits are likely to create 
more jobs than worker subsidies. But a thriving California economy is the best route to future employment growth 
in the short and long run. Economic policy that stimulates business and fosters a strong, skilled workforce are thus 
crucial to job creation in California. 

	 •	 don’t pin all hopes on one industry.
Although many industries—such as motion picture, high-technology, and wine-making—are highly concentrated in 
California, the state’s economy is in fact very diversified, and its industry mix is quite similar to the national industry 
mix. Economic policy should reflect the breadth and diversity of the state’s economy. Tempting as it is to identify the 
next boom industry—such as clean technology—and focus economic development efforts there, booms usually 
don’t deliver stable, steady growth, as the Internet and housing industries demonstrate. And some hyped industries 
fail to take off at all. Economic development policy needs to nurture both new, innovative industries that might con-
stitute California’s next boom and established, steadily growing industries such as health care. 

	 •	 promote economic opportunity through education.
Education is the key correlate of economic well-being for Californians. Highly educated workers were somewhat 
protected from the impact of the Great Recession and are likely to do better during future boom and bust cycles. 
Promoting education is thus an important strategy for ensuring economic opportunity across the income spectrum 
and addressing income inequality. And because the new economy demands a highly skilled workforce, education 
has a crucial role in helping California remain economically competitive. 



We invite you to dig deeper at ppic.org. related ppic resources include:
The Great Recession and Distribution of Income in California
How Can California Spur Job Creation?
Business Climate Rankings and the California Economy
Business Relocation and Homegrown Jobs, 1992–2006 
Business Location Decisions and Employment Dynamics in California 
Are the Rich Leaving California?

contact a ppic expert:
Sarah Bohn

this publication is part of ppic’s planning for a better future project.

The Public Policy Institute of California is dedicated to informing and improving public policy in California through independent, objective, nonpartisan research. 
We are a private operating foundation. We do not take or support positions on any ballot measure or on any local, state, or federal legislation, nor do we endorse, 
support, or oppose any political parties or candidates for public office. Research publications reflect the views of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the 
views of the staff, officers, or Board of Directors of the Public Policy Institute of California. 

Public Policy Institute of California
500 Washington Street, Suite 600
San Francisco, CA 94111
T 415 291 4400   F 415 291 4401   

PPIC Sacramento Center
Senator Office Building
1121 L Street, Suite 801
Sacramento, CA 95814
T 916 440 1120   F 916 440 1121   

www.ppic.org

The series is funded by PPIC’s Donor Circle
v0212

http://www.ppic.org/main/home.asp
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=965
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=939
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=867
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=956
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=710
http://www.ppic.org/content/pubs/jtf/JTF_LeavingCAJTF.pdf
http://www.ppic.org/main/bio.asp?i=375
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=895
http://www.ppic.org/main/home.asp
http://www.ppic.org/main/ca2025.asp


EDUCATION
CALIFORNIA

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
ve

ra
ge

 ra
te

 o
f s

tu
de

nt
 p

ro
�c

ie
nc

y 
(E

LA
)

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

2010 20112009200820072006200520042003

 
 

 
 

 
 

White

All students

Latino

Economically 
disadvantaged

African American

English learners

Asian

California educates more than 6 million children in its K–12 public schools. Many of these children are economically  
disadvantaged, and many (a higher percentage than in any other state) are not native speakers. Despite these chal-
lenges, and despite three years of constrained budgets, test scores have been rising. Further improvement is likely  
to be challenging, given the budget situation, the inequitable distribution of school dollars, and the complexity of  
federal, state, and local funding mechanisms. According to a recent PPIC Statewide Survey, most Californians favor 
either maintaining or increasing funding for K–12 education.  

PROFICIENCY RATES ARE INCREASING, BUT GAPS REmAIN 

	 •  Proficiency in both math and English language arts (ELA) has increased 19 percentage points in the past 
eight years. 
By these measures, California schools appear to be heading in the right direction, especially considering the fact 
that California’s academic standards are the highest in the nation. But the state is not on track to make No Child 
Left Behind targets of 100 percent proficiency by 2014. 

	 •  Significant gaps in proficiency rates remain. 
White and Asian students’ ELA proficiency levels are higher than those for Latino and African American students. 
Gaps in math proficiency are similar to those in ELA, with a few notable exceptions. Asian students’ proficiency rates 
are dramatically higher than those for whites (84 percent versus 70 percent in 2011). African American students have 
the lowest math proficiency rates, on average 5 percentage points lower than those for English learners (ELs).

CALIFORNIA ENGLISh LANGUAGE ARTS PROFICIENCY hAS RISEN STEAdILY

SOURCE: California Department of Education (2003–2011). 
NOTE: A multiracial category was added in 2010, which ranges between 2 to 3% of all students.

http://www.ppic.org/main/home.asp
http://www.ppic.org/main/series.asp?i=12


CALIFORNIA STUdENTS FACE mANY ChALLENGES

 •	 California students are more disadvantaged than their peers in other states. 
Slightly more than one in ten students in the United States are ELs; in California, nearly one out of every four students 
is an EL. More than half (53 percent) of all students in California are eligible for free or reduced-price meals; this share is 
higher than the national average of 45 percent.

 •	 Gaps in school readiness and academic skills are evident in kindergarten. 
On average, students whose parents have low education levels and low-income, African American, Latino, and EL 
students begin school less prepared. These groups score lower on the standardized tests that begin in second grade, 
and the achievement gaps persist into later grades.

 •	 Early, high-quality interventions are critical.
A growing body of research indicates that investments in pre-kindergarten programs can produce both short- and 
long-term benefits that exceed costs. Programs targeted at low-socioeconomic-status children have the greatest  
returns. High-quality preschool shows particular promise, as do programs that target families. If implemented, 
California’s new Transitional Kindergarten program is likely to provide early learning benefits to the quarter of kinder-
garten students with autumn birthdates who are eligible.

	 •	 Appropriately targeted interventions may improve graduation rates.
A PPIC study found that students likely to fail the California High School Exit Exam (CAHSEE) can be identified as early 
as fourth grade. A strategic focus on support for elementary school students may reduce the need for later, more 
costly remediation.

ThE CALIFORNIA ECONOmY PRESENTS A ChALLENGE TO CALIFORNIA SChOOLS

 • California school districts face significant budget challenges.
K–12 education, which makes up the largest share of the state budget, has faced significant cuts in recent years.  
Between 2007–08 and 2010–11, the state’s contribution to K–12 decreased by 13 percent; when one controls for infla-
tion the reduction is greater. District reserves, federal aid, and eased restrictions on spending have partially mitigated 
the effects of these cuts, but reserves are dwindling and federal stimulus dollars were mostly spent by the end of the 
2010–11 school year.

 •	 State payment deferrals are a challenge.
In recent years, the state has relied on deferrals—payments made after the close of the fiscal year for programs 
and services already provided—to avoid deeper cuts to K–12 funding. The Legislative Analyst’s Office estimates that  
20 percent ($10.4 billion) of 2011–12 funding will not be paid until 2012–13. Districts have had to take out short-term 
loans to cover expenses and the debt service on this borrowing leaves districts with less money to spend on instruction. 

CALIFORNIA’S SChOOL FINANCE SYSTEm IS INAdEqUATE ANd INEqUITABLE

	 •	 California spends less per pupil than other states.
California ranks 33rd on per pupil expenditures and 26th on per capita expenditures. Because California’s population 
is younger than that of many other states, the state has more students to educate relative to the size of the popula-
tion, resulting in higher per capita spending. Since the 2007–08 school year, the state’s ranking has fallen on per pupil 
and per capita expenditures, while the student-teacher ratio ranking held constant at 49th during this period. 

	 •	 Adjusting for costs, California’s per pupil spending ranks near the bottom.
California’s low per pupil spending does not go as far as it would in other states because school costs are higher 
here. For example, California teachers earn about 40 percent more than their peers in Florida and the average salary is 
similar to those paid in New York. The high cost of labor in California may prevent significant reductions in class sizes. 

http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=726


California $9,503 33 $1,642 26 $68,093 2 20.8 49

Florida $8,867 38 $1,266 49 $46,921 34 14.1 25

New York $17,710 1 $2,493 3 $69,118 1 12.6 8

Texas $8,562 41 $1,674 24 $47,157 33 14.5 28

All other states $10,581 $1,634 $54,244 14.6

Expenditures 
per pupil 

(2008–2009) Rank

Expenditures 
per capita 

(2008–2009) Rank

Average teacher 
salary 

(2008–2009) Rank

Student teacher 
ratio     

(2008–2009) Rank

SOURCES: National Center for Education Statistics. 

	 •	 Per pupil funding varies widely and districts with greater challenges do not always receive greater funding. 
Many studies have found California’s school finance system inequitable, with wide variation in per pupil funding 
across and even within school districts. Despite efforts to equalize funding, large differences persist across district 
types and sizes. For example, base funding for the 13 school districts in Sacramento County ranged from $5,010 
to $6,100 per pupil in 2010–11. Additionally, districts with higher per pupil costs—for example, those with more 
disadvantaged, special education, or EL students—do not necessarily receive enough additional resources to  
address their students’ needs. An equitable funding formula would provide additional revenue to districts facing 
extra costs. Reform is hampered by the complex array of laws and formulas that make it difficult for any but a few 
experts to anticipate how proposed changes will impact particular schools, programs, and students.

ACCOUNTABILITY PROGRAmS ARE IN NEEd OF ImPROVEmENT

	 •	 School demographics are a strong predictor of school success.
Accountability grades may reveal more about the type of students who attend a school than about the effectiveness 
of teachers and administrators at that school. Schools that meet accountability requirements have lower percent-
ages of economically disadvantaged and EL students and lower total enrollments, on average. 

 •  Accountability systems based on achievement levels may not accurately distinguish between effective and 
ineffective schools.
Schools with low levels of achievement are not necessarily schools with ineffective administrators and teachers. 
California’s current accountability system does not evaluate schools on the basis of individual student achievement 
gains, making it difficult to distinguish between schools where teachers and administrators are effective and schools 
where they are not. Revisions of current accountability systems are certain to be a part of the discussion and imple-
mentation of the reauthorization of the federal Elementary and Secondary Education Act. 

LOOkING AhEAd
To improve the state’s economic well-being and ensure that California’s children are equipped to succeed in the 21st century, 
policymakers need to adopt policies that will help the state’s school systems maintain and build on recent improvements. 

	 •	 Increase efforts to centralize existing data into a preschool-through-higher-education (P–20) data system. 
The California Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System (CALPADS) aims to merge student-level data that districts 
already collect into a single, centralized database and to make it possible to identify effective policies for improving 
student learning. Some innovative districts already use student, teacher, and school data to fine tune instruction 
and programs but other districts lack this capacity. California is decades behind states like Texas, Florida, and North 
Carolina, which are already using their comprehensive data systems to improve educational quality. 



The Public Policy Institute of California is dedicated to informing and improving public policy in California through indepen-
dent, objective, nonpartisan research. We are a private operating foundation. We do not take or support positions on any ballot 
measure or on any local, state, or federal legislation, nor do we endorse, support, or oppose any political parties or candidates 
for public office. Research publications reflect the views of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of the staff, of-
ficers, or Board of Directors of the Public Policy Institute of California. 

Public Policy Institute of California PPIC Sacramento Center - Senator Office Building
500 Washington Street, Suite 600 1121 L Street, Suite 801
San Francisco, CA 94111 Sacramento, CA 95814
T 415 291 4400   F 415 291 4401    T 916 440 1120   F 916 440 1121  
www.ppic.org 

	 •	 Reform school finance.
The current Robles-Wong v. California lawsuit and the 2014–15 expiration of spending flexibility provisions give California 
an opportunity to reconsider its level of funding for schools and how it allocates that funding. Despite its budget 
problems, the state can make low-cost structural changes now that will help it invest wisely when the economy 
recovers.  

	 •	 Capitalize on the benefits of the new Common Core State Standards.
California recently adopted new Common Core State Standards (CCSS)—as did all but a few states. California’s own 
academic standards had not been updated since 1997. These new standards are widely thought to set a high bar for 
students, requiring more high order skills, advanced content knowledge, and advanced English language skills. The 
aim of CCSS is to increase college and workforce preparedness and ensure students are competitive in the global 
economy. New assessments based on the standards are being developed and will be used as early as 2014. By adopt-
ing national standards, California will be able to measure its progress against that of other states, not just against its 
own past performance. In addition, California has chosen to supplement CCSS so as not jeopardize its own rigorous 
standards. 

We invite you to dig deeper at ppic.org. Related PPIC resources include:
Does Diagnostic Math Testing Improve Student Learning?
Improving School Accountability in California
California’s New School Funding Flexibility
Early Grade Retention and Student Success: Evidence from Los Angeles
At Issue: School Finance Reform
Pathways for School Finance in California
Lessons in Reading Reform: Finding What Works
Higher Education in California: New Goals for the Master Plan
Predicting Success, Preventing Failure: An Investigation of the California High School Exit Exam
Funding Formulas for California Schools: Simulations and Supporting Data 
PPIC Statewide Survey: Californians and Education

Contact a PPIC expert:
Julian Betts Jill Cannon Laura Hill Hans Johnson Margaret Weston

This publication is part of PPIC’s Planning for a Better Future project.

The series is funded by PPIC’s Donor Circle
v0212

http://www.ppic.org/main/home.asp
http://www.ppic.org/main/home.asp
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=953
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=909
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=941
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=910
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=943
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=923
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=922
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=916
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=726
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=796
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=977
http://www.ppic.org/main/bio.asp?i=65
http://www.ppic.org/main/bio.asp?i=373
http://www.ppic.org/main/bio.asp?i=130
http://www.ppic.org/main/bio.asp?i=132
http://www.ppic.org/main/bio.asp?i=400
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=895
http://www.ppic.org/main/home.asp
http://www.ppic.org/main/ca2025.asp


housing
CALiFoRniA

CALIFORNIA FACES IMMEDIATE AND LONG-TERM HOUSING CHALLENGES
California is still experiencing the aftereffects of the most recent housing bubble, and the long-term challenges of 
housing California’s population haven’t gone away. The housing bubble, which inflated and popped over the past 
decade, has left the state with a foreclosure problem and large losses of construction jobs, which accounted for  
6 percent of California’s employment when housing prices were at their peak (according to the California Employment 
Development Department). Millions of California’s homeowners remain “underwater,” owing more on their houses 
than they are worth.

There are a few signs of hope. Housing price declines, along with low interest rates, have led to historically high rates 
of affordability. In many Inland areas of California, a large majority of households can afford the median-price home, 
and half of the state’s households can afford to pay the median price for a home even in California’s most expensive 
metropolitan area, San Jose. Housing values are not increasing at a significant rate, but they are not falling as sharply 
as they were a few years ago and may have leveled off. Vacancy rates are low in California compared to the rest of the 
country, and there will be strong population growth among adults old enough to establish their own households, 
which should increase housing demand. Of course, high unemployment and difficulty in borrowing undercut these 
hopeful signs. 

In both the short and the long term, California’s economic performance and livability depend on its housing market. 
The perennially high cost of housing in coastal California reflects the fact that people and businesses are willing to pay 
more to be there than almost any other place in the U.S.; it also reflects barriers to building new housing in those areas. 
In the inland areas, economic recovery could partly depend in on policies designed to address the acute negative equity 
and foreclosure crises in that part of the state.

THE HOUSING BUBBLE AFTERMATH IS FAR FROM OVER
The housing price bubble and its deflation in the century’s first decade helped trigger a national recession and global 
slowdown. Prices rose and fell more in California than in most of the country. Prices remain at or near their post-bubble 
lows, construction remains slow, and 30 percent of mortgaged residential properties are underwater, according to 
CoreLogic.

•	 Home prices in California are down more than 40 percent from their bubble-era peak.
After growing rapidly earlier in the decade, home prices peaked in 2006, fell sharply in 2007 and 2008, and have 
fallen modestly since then. By October 2011, the average home value in California had returned to its October 
2002 level of just over $295,000 (Zillow). Nationally, home prices have fallen 24 percent from a peak in early 2007 
of $194,000 to a median of $148,000 in October 2011. 

http://www.ppic.org/main/home.asp


0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

 
19

96
   

19
97

   
19

98
   

19
99

   
20

00
   

20
01

   
20

02
   

20
03

   
20

04
   

20
05

   
20

06
   

20
07

   
20

08
   

20
09

   
20

10
   

20
11

 

California overall

Fresno metro

Los Angeles metro

Inland Empire

Sacramento metro

San Diego metro

San Francisco metro

San Jose metro
M

ed
ia

n 
ho

m
e 

va
lu

es
 ($

 in
 th

ou
sa

nd
s)

•	 Large numbers of Californians owe more on their homes than they are worth.
According to CoreLogic, 30 percent of California homeowners with mortgages were underwater in the second quarter 
of 2011, the fifth highest rate in the nation (after Nevada, Arizona, Florida, and Michigan). In all, 2.1 million of 6.8 million 
mortgaged households were underwater in California. More than half of mortgaged homeowners in the Stockton 
and Modesto metropolitan areas and almost half in the Inland Empire were underwater. By contrast, only 10 percent 
of mortgaged homeowners in San Francisco, San Mateo, and Marin counties were underwater, and the average net 
equity for mortgage holders in those areas was $371,000, by far the highest in the nation.

•	 Foreclosures remain high and new construction remains low.
Falling prices, combined with rising unemployment and resetting interest rates for adjustable mortgages, have led to 
very high foreclosure rates. Foreclosures skyrocketed in 2007, peaked in 2008, and foreclosure rates have remained 
more than twice as high as in the rest of the nation through 2011 (RAND/DataQuick and RealtyTrac). In October 2011, 
only Nevada had a higher foreclosure filing rate. Falling prices and relatively weak population growth have also dis-
couraged new construction: new residential construction permits fell from around 200,000 annually from 2003 to 2005 
to tens of thousands annually from 2008 to 2011, according to U.S. Census Bureau data. 

•	 Homeownership rates have fallen.
Homeownership rates, already much lower in California than the rest of the nation, fell more in California than else-
where in the country, reaching 57 percent of all housing units (compared to 68 percent for the nation). Between 2005 
and 2010, the number of housing units that were owned fell by over 300,000 in California, while the number rented 
increased by almost 400,000.

•	 Coastal metropolitan centers have fared better than inland California.
During the post-bubble years, home values declined less steeply in the metropolitan areas of San Jose (25 percent) and 
San Francisco (34 percent), as well as in San Diego (37 percent) and Los Angeles (38 percent). At the other extreme, the 
largest declines, with values falling more than 60 percent, have occurred in some of the same inland metros that had 
experienced the fastest run up in values, including Merced (69 percent decline, from $351,100 to $107,600), Modesto  
(64 percent decline, from $368,200 to $128,100) and Stockton (65 percent decline, from $410,900 to $144,800). Prices fell 
by more than 50 percent in Sacramento, Fresno, Bakersfield, and the Inland Empire. Not surprisingly, foreclosure rates 
have been higher in these inland areas. In the Inland Empire, for instance, the foreclosure rate from 2006 to 2010 was 
nearly four times that of Los Angeles and Orange Counties.

MEDIAN HOME VALUES IN CALIFORNIA: BOOM AND BUST

SOURCE: Zillow.  
NOTE: Values are in nominal dollars.



-60% to -70%

-50% to -60%

-40% to -50%

-15% to -40%

HOME VALUES HAVE DECLINED MORE STEEpLy INLAND THAN ON THE COAST 

SOURCE: Zillow market value report for California counties.
NOTES: Percentage change, local price peak to October 2011.  No data available for areas in white.

DESpITE THE BURSTING OF THE BUBBLE, HOUSING IS EXpENSIVE AND THE MARKET IS TIGHT
Falling prices make buying a house more affordable, but rents have actually risen (in nominal terms) during the crisis. Even 
with the downturn in prices, median values exceed $500,000 in the San Jose metro area and $400,000 in the San Francisco 
metro area. California’s statewide median remains almost twice as high as the national median.

•	 Housing is dense relative to other states.
California is often thought of as the epitome of sprawl, but its housing density is 35 percent above the national aver-
age and rising. Census data show that the Los Angeles and San Francisco metropolitan areas have the second- and 
third-highest residential density in the U.S., after New York, while San Jose and San Diego are also in the top ten. High 
density goes hand in hand with high prices: where real estate is expensive, developers build upward and closer to-
gether, and people are willing to live in smaller spaces. California’s population density is heightened by its household 
structure: the typical California household has 2.1 adults and 0.7 children, as compared to the national average of 1.9 
adults and 0.6 children. 

•	 Rents are high and rising.
Rental units account for 43 percent of California’s occupied housing stock, according to the American Community Survey. 
According to HUD, five of the ten most expensive rental markets in the U.S. are in California: San Francisco, Orange 
County, San Jose, Ventura County, and Los Angeles. And, unlike housing prices, typical rents were higher in 2011 than 
in 2006 in nearly all metropolitan areas, in nominal terms. Even more striking, since 2006 rents have risen more in the 
metropolitan areas with higher foreclosure rates, even though home prices have fallen more sharply where foreclosures 
are more widespread. 

•	 Vacancies are low, relative to most states.
Despite sharply falling prices in recent years and increases in vacancy rates, the residential vacancy rate in California 
remains among the lowest in the country. Even in the San Joaquin Valley and Inland Empire, residential vacancy rates 
are near the national average. The other states with the highest foreclosure rates (Arizona, Florida, Georgia, and Nevada) 
have among the highest vacancy rates in the U.S. In these states, foreclosure often leads to abandonment, whereas in Cali-
fornia foreclosure more often means turnover. (Vacancy rate data are from HUD, USPS, and American Community Survey.)



The Public Policy Institute of California is dedicated to informing and improving public policy in California through independent, objective, 
nonpartisan research. We are a private operating foundation. We do not take or support positions on any ballot measure or on any local, state, or 
federal legislation, nor do we endorse, support, or oppose any political parties or candidates for public office. Research publications reflect the 
views of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of the staff, officers, or Board of Directors of the Public Policy Institute of California. 

Public Policy Institute of California
500 Washington Street, Suite 600
San Francisco, CA 94111
T 415 291 4400   F 415 291 4401   

PPIC Sacramento Center
Senator Office Building
1121 L Street, Suite 801
Sacramento, CA 95814
T 916 440 1120   F 916 440 1121 

www.ppic.org

We invite you to dig deeper at ppic.org. Related ppIC resources include:
The California Economy: Housing Market Update
California's Housing Market
California’s Newest Homeowners: Affording the Unaffordable
Urban Development Futures in the San Joaquin Valley

This publication is part of ppIC’s planning for a Better Future project.

LOOKING AHEAD
California needs to address both immediate and long-term housing challenges with policies that help resolve the fore-
closure crisis, fund affordable housing construction, and remove unnecessary barriers to expanding the supply of housing 
in high cost areas. 

•	 With the job and housing markets recovering slowly, foreclosures will continue.
Foreclosures displace families and can ruin access to credit, but keeping people in homes they cannot afford risks 
slowing down recovery in the housing and financial markets. Most housing policy is set at the federal level, and most 
housing financial institutions—including Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, and the large banks—are national. However, 
states strongly influence the foreclosure process, and the hardest-hit states (including California) have received federal 
money to help under water borrowers. With these tools, the state should do what it can to help struggling home-
owners who can potentially afford their homes and to speed up the foreclosure process for homeowners who can’t.

•	 Funding for affordable housing is threatened.
Affordable housing construction in California is funded partly through redevelopment agency set-asides and general 
obligation bonds. Redevelopment has been eliminated from the fiscal year 2011–12 budget, and continued state budget 
troubles raise the cost of borrowing and limit the scope for authorizing and issuing new general obligation bonds. If it 
wants to support affordable housing construction, California needs to establish new funding mechanisms.

•	 Regulations help keep housing prices high in coastal areas.
Why is housing so expensive in California? Many people and industries are willing to pay a premium to be here, 
which keeps demand high. At the same time, the supply of new housing is constrained both by geography and 
regulation. Most of populated California is nestled against natural barriers to construction—the ocean, the Bay, and 
the mountains. And California has unusually strong land-use and building regulations, especially in the major coastal 
cities, which curtail construction and keep prices high.

Contact a ppIC expert:
Hans Johnson

The series is funded by PPIC’s Donor Circle
v0212

http://www.ppic.org/main/home.asp
http://www.ppic.org/main/home.asp
http://www.ppic.org/content/pubs/jtf/JTF_HousingMarketUpdateJTF.pdf
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=1009
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=625
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=341
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=895
http://www.ppic.org/main/bio.asp?i=132
http://www.ppic.org/main/home.asp
http://www.ppic.org/main/ca2025.asp


POPULATION
CALIFORNIA

Po
pu

la
tio

n 
(m

ill
io

ns
)

50   –

40   –

45   –

35   –

25   –

30   –

20   –

15   –

10   –

5   –

0   – – –– – – – –– – – –– – – –– – – –

 

19
70

19
73

19
76

19
79

19
82

19
85

19
88

19
91

19
94

19
97

20
00

20
03

20
06

20
09

20
12

20
15

20
18

20
21

20
24

 

Estimated

Projected

Growth will put pressure on infrastructure
California has long been known for and even defined by its tremendous population growth. No other developed 
region of the world that is California’s size has sustained so much growth over such a long period. Equally remarkable 
has been the increasing diversity in the state’s population. California is home to large groups of immigrants from more 
than 60 nations, and no race or ethnic group constitutes a majority of the state’s population. Although growth rates 
have slowed, the state added 3.4 million people from 2000 to 2010 (according to Census counts), reaching a total popu-
lation of 37.3 million. The most recent estimates by the California Department of Finance place the state’s population 
at 37.5 million for July 2011.

During the next 20 years California’s population will continue to increase, with millions of new residents each decade. In 
all areas of infrastructure and public services—including education, transportation, corrections, housing, water, health, 
and welfare—population growth will lead to new demands. 

Growth continues as reGional, racial/ethnic, anD aGe Groups shift

	 •	 population gains are projected to continue. 
By 2025, California’s population is projected to reach about 44 million. Annual growth rates are expected to be 
just 1 percent, similar to growth experienced in the 1990s and the 2000s but substantially slower than in earlier 
decades. Even so, average annual increases will exceed 400,000—equivalent to adding the population of a city 
the size of Oakland each year.  

california’s population will continue to Grow        

SOURCE: U.S. Census Bureau.

http://www.ppic.org/main/home.asp


100   –

90   –

80   –

70   –

60   –

50   –

40   –

30   –

20   –

10   –

0   –

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge

1980 2009 2025

–– – –

American Indian

Multirace

Asian/Paci�c Islander

Latino

White

African American

	 • inland areas will see higher growth.
The inland areas of California have grown faster than the coastal areas for many decades, but coastal counties are still 
home to most of the state’s population. Projections indicate that the Inland Empire, the Sacramento region, and the 
San Joaquin Valley will grow faster than other areas of the state. Key milestones expected by 2025:

 Los Angeles County will reach nearly 11 million residents.

 Riverside County will surpass 3 million residents.

 Santa Clara County will reach 2 million residents.

 Fresno County and Kern County will surpass 1 million residents each.

 • california’s population will continue to diversify.
No ethnic group composes a majority of the state’s population, with whites (non-Hispanic) making up 40 percent of 
the state’s population and Latinos making up 38 percent.  The California Department of Finance projects that in 2016 
Latinos will replace whites as the largest ethnic group. Among children ages 9 and under, Latinos already make up 
52 percent of the population. Latino increases are due to both immigration and relatively high birth rates. Immigrants 
are projected to make up 29 percent of the state’s population in 2025, a modest increase from 27 percent in 2009.

 •	 large numbers of californians will soon reach retirement age.
In 2010, 11 percent of Californians were age 65 and over, compared to only 9 percent in 1970. By 2025, that share will 
grow to 16 percent. The total number of adults age 65 and over is projected to grow from 4.2 million in 2010 to more 
than 7 million in 2025. 

 •	 the number of children will change very slowly.
From 2010 to 2020 the number of children in public schools is projected to increase only 2 percent according to the 
California Department of Finance. This is a consequence of slight declines in birth rates along with a small increase 
in the number of women aged 15 to 44. In contrast, during the 1990s the number of school children grew more than 
20 percent.

latinos will BecoMe california’s larGest ethnic Group

SOURCES: 1980 and 2010 Censuses; California Department of Finance projections.



Projected change, 2009–2025

Greater than 20%

Less than 20%

inlanD counties will experience faster population Growth

lookinG aheaD
The state’s growing and changing population will put pressure on a variety of infrastructure needs and public services. 
Key areas to watch:

schools. The relatively slow growth in the number of school-aged children could give the state time to catch up on school 
infrastructure needs and a chance to adjust school budgets, perhaps increasing per student expenditures. Demand for 
higher education should continue to increase with large numbers of students graduating from high school, but enrollment 
pressures will lessen after 2015.

housing. After the elderly, adults in their late 20s and early 30s will be the fastest-growing age group. Between 2010 and 
2025, the number of adults ages 25 to 39 will increase by almost 30 percent. These are the ages at which young adults typi-
cally get married, start families, and establish their own households—driving up housing demand.

health and human services. Meeting the needs of a large and growing elderly population will pose more challenges. 
For example, even though Medi-Cal enrolls a far larger share of children, elderly adults account for a much higher share of 
expenditures. Annual costs per enrollee are at least five times higher for adults over age 50 than for children. Nursing home 
care is especially expensive.

the 2010 census. The 2010 Census counted 37.3 million California residents, about 1.5 million fewer than had been esti-
mated by the California Department of Finance. According to the Census, California grew at about the same rate (10 percent) 
as the rest of the nation during the decade, its slowest rate on record. For the first time since 1920 (when the Census was 
not used to reapportion the House of Representatives), California did not gain any congressional seats. A key question is 
whether the 2010 count was accurate. States and local jurisdictions have challenged Census counts in the past, but without 
much success. As additional Census data is released, technical analyses will shed more light on the accuracy of the count.

SOURCE: California Department of Finance projections.



The Public Policy Institute of California is dedicated to informing and improving public policy in California through independent, objective, nonpartisan research. 
We are a private operating foundation. We do not take or support positions on any ballot measure or on any local, state, or federal legislation, nor do we endorse, 
support, or oppose any political parties or candidates for public office. Research publications reflect the views of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the 
views of the staff, officers, or Board of Directors of the Public Policy Institute of California. 

Public Policy Institute of California
500 Washington Street, Suite 600
San Francisco, CA 94111
T 415 291 4400   F 415 291 4401   

PPIC Sacramento Center
Senator Office Building
1121 L Street, Suite 801
Sacramento, CA 95814
T 916 440 1120   F 916 440 1121   

www.ppic.org

we invite you to dig deeper at ppic.org. related ppic resources include:
New Patterns of Immigrant Settlement in California
PPIC Statewide Survey: Californians and Population Issues
Are the Rich Leaving California? 
California’s Future Population
Immigrants in California
The Inland Empire in 2015

contact a ppic expert:
Hans Johnson

this publication is part of ppic’s planning for a Better future project.

The series is funded by PPIC’s Donor Circle
v0212

http://www.ppic.org/main/home.asp
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=812
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=879
http://www.ppic.org/content/pubs/jtf/JTF_LeavingCAJTF.pdf
http://www.ppic.org/content/pubs/jtf/JTF_FuturePopulationJTF.pdf
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication_show.asp?i=258
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=709
http://www.ppic.org/main/bio.asp?i=132
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=895
http://www.ppic.org/main/home.asp
http://www.ppic.org/main/ca2025.asp


WATER
CALIFORNIA

California faCes growing water management Challenges 
Water management in California has always been difficult, especially because the state’s variable climate is marked by 
long droughts and severe floods. The state also features stark regional differences in water availability and demand; it 
relies on a vast network of storage and conveyance facilities to deliver water from the wetter parts of the state (mostly 
the northern and eastern mountains) to population and farming centers in the Bay Area, the San Joaquin Valley, and 
Southern California. This supply network is now threatened by the physical and biological fragility of the system’s hub 
in the Sacramento–San Joaquin Delta.

Other challenges are on the horizon. Even if current efforts to reduce per capita water use are successful, population 
growth is likely to increase water demand in urban areas. At the same time, conflicts are growing between human 
water uses and water necessary to support fish and other wildlife. In addition, California faces serious and growing 
threats to life and property from flooding, particularly in the Central Valley.

Climate change will play an important, if uncertain, role. California’s natural variability is likely to increase, accentuating 
droughts and floods. Rising air temperatures are expected to significantly reduce the Sierra Nevada snowpack, affecting 
water storage as well as winter and spring flood flows. Higher water temperatures may make it harder to maintain 
aquatic habitats for native fish species.

Over time, all of these challenges are likely to intensify. Potential solutions will involve difficult and sometimes costly 
tradeoffs, as well as inconvenient legal and political changes.

rising temPeratUres will Diminish the sierra neVaDa snowPaCK 

SOURCE: N. Knowles and D. R. Cayan, “Potential Effects of Global Warming on the Sacramento/San Joaquin Watershed and the San Francisco 
Estuary,” Geophysical Research Letters 29, no. 18 (2002).  
NOTES: SWE is snow water equivalent. These scenarios are based on projected temperature increases: 0.6˚C (2020–2039), 1.6˚C (2050–2069), and 
2.1˚C (2080–2099), expressed as a percentage of estimated present conditions (1995–2005). These are modest increases relative to some model 
projections. With higher temperature increases, the snowpack would be commensurately smaller. 

2030 SWE: 95% 2060 SWE: 64% 2090 SWE: 48%

Area shown

100 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100

Percentage

http://www.ppic.org/main/home.asp


Above sea level

Sea level to 10 feet below sea level

10 to 15 feet below sea level

15 feet or more below sea level

Department of Water Resources, 
Sacramento–San Joaquin Delta Atlas (1995).

Lodi

Stockton

Sacramento

Clarksburg

Freeport

Hood

Courtland

Walnut
Grove

Isleton
Rio Vista

Concord

Antioch Oakley

Pittsburg

Discovery
Bay

Los Vaqueros
Reservoir

Suisun Marsh
Salinity Control

Gate

Barker Slough
Pumping Plant

YO
LO

 B
YP

A
SS

Tracy

Manteca
Lathrop

Harvey O. Banks
Delta Pumping Plant

South Bay
Pumping Plant

Tracy
Pumping

Plant

Ryde

CO
SU

M
N

ES
 R

. 
Grizzly

Bay

Suisun Bay

SA
C

RA
M

EN
TO

 R
.

MOKELUMNE R.

Dry Creek

Contra Costa Canal

M
ar

sh
 C

re
ek

Lindsey Slough
Cache Slough

Carq
uinez

Str
ait

Honker
Bay

Delta-Mendota Canal

California Aqueduct

AMERICAN R.
Suisun
Marsh

Suisun Marsh

SAN
 JO

AQ
U

IN
 R.

N

2 0 2 4 6

miles

California’s biggest water Challenge: instability in the Delta 
As the fragile hub of California’s water supply, the Delta now poses serious risks to the economies of the Bay Area, Southern 
California, and the San Joaquin Valley. Sea level rise and earthquakes threaten the weak Delta levees that keep salt water at 
bay. Environmental measures are also having an effect on water supplies. Since 2007, the collapse of native fish species has 
led to court-ordered cutbacks of pumping from the southern Delta. The Delta’s physical deterioration will not be delayed 
by political indecision: the state faces inevitable, fundamental change in this region.

 • a peripheral canal is the best approach for addressing both ecosystem and economic risks.
Instead of pulling water through the Delta to the pumps (the current system), a peripheral canal (or tunnel) would tap 
water upstream on the Sacramento River and move it around (or underneath) the Delta to the pumps. This change 
would be good for native fish: fewer would be trapped in the pumps and most would benefit from an increase in 
natural tidal flows within the Delta. It would also be good for the economy, improving both water quality and water 
supply reliability. Dual conveyance (a peripheral canal combined with continued through-Delta pumping) is a potential 
near-term solution. But by late in this century, sea level rise and levee failures could make Delta waters too salty to 
sustain through-Delta pumping.

an earthQUaKe CoUlD CaUse salt water to fill the Delta’s 
low-lying islanDs anD DisrUPt water sUPPlies

SOURCE: Department of Water Resources, Sacramento–San Joaquin Delta Atlas (1995). 



Urban e�ciency

Recycled water

Groundwater storage

Surface storage (state)

Agricultural e�ciency (net)

Forest management

Desalination

Cloud seeding

0.0 0.5 1.0 1.5  2.52.0   3.0

Millions of acre-feet per year

■   Low estimate

■   High estimate

 
 

 

	 •	 governance and finance solutions are needed; so is attention to the Delta economy.
To ensure that the canal is managed for environmental benefits and to prevent a “water grab” by those who rely 
on Delta exports, safeguards are needed. For example, giving fish managers a share of conveyance capacity can 
provide environmental safeguards. Financing mechanisms are needed to ensure that water users pay for the new 
infrastructure and support ecosystem restoration. Funds will also be needed for transitions in the Delta. The region 
will lose some agricultural islands from levee failures, whether or not there is a canal, but it could benefit from new 
recreation opportunities. 

water sUPPly Planning neeDs to rely on a Portfolio aPProaCh
Since the 1980s, water supply planning has been moving toward a portfolio approach: instead of looking for “silver bullets,” 
planners are developing multiple supply sources and water conservation strategies, balancing costs and reliability. 

	 •	 California is fortunate to have many options for meeting new demands.
Expanding traditional supply sources—particularly surface reservoirs and native groundwater supplies—is more 
difficult than in the past. But there is considerable scope for cost-effective expansion of nontraditional supplies 
such as recycled wastewater, and for improving water use efficiency. Water marketing—the sale or leasing of  
water—plays an important role in increasing efficiency; it allows water to be transferred from lower- to higher-value 
farming and to growing urban areas.

	 •	 much progress has been made since the drought of the early 1990s.
Water markets have been valuable in supplying water to cities and high-value agriculture during droughts and for 
long-term growth. Urban water use efficiency has risen in most areas thanks to new plumbing codes, better technology, 
and better pricing incentives. Regional cooperation is helping local utilities cope with supply emergencies.

Changing water DemanDs Can be met in many ways

SOURCE: Department of Water Resources, California Water Plan Update 2009 (Bulletin 160-09).
NOTE: Annual production potential from new water sources and conservation by 2030.



$ 
M

ill
io

ns
 (2

00
9)

100

0

700

600

500

400

300

200

1998
1999

2000
2001

2002
2003

2004
2005

2006
2007

2008
2009

State spending

Federal spending

	 •	 Underground storage has great potential but faces institutional obstacles.
Where space is available in aquifers, storing water underground can be a cost-effective way to save it for dry years. 
This “groundwater banking” will become increasingly important as the snowpack declines. The current lack of state 
regulation makes success dependent on agreements among local parties. Groundwater banking has increased in 
some areas, but much more could be done, particularly in the Central Valley. 

	 •	 surface storage expansion has been very contentious.
Increased surface storage could make up for some loss of storage in the snowpack and could also provide more flexi-
bility in managing floodwaters and environmental flows. However, new storage has not been proven to provide large 
new supplies of water, and it will be less valuable if climate change reduces overall precipitation. Large financial and 
environmental costs also raise concerns. Public opinion appears split: 50 percent of all adults feel that California should 
focus on improving water use efficiency; 43 percent prefer building new storage (PPIC Statewide Survey, July 2009).  

	 •	 California needs to decide how to pay for water investments.
State general obligation bonds (funded by tax dollars) have funded some local water supply investments in recent 
years. When investments lead to true public benefits, such as ecosystem restoration, relying on tax dollars makes 
sense. But these investments take general revenue funds away from education and other state budget priorities. One 
alternative is the “user pays” principle, which guided investments in the State Water Project. Also, higher water rates 
create incentives to use water more efficiently. 

California has only jUst begUn to aDDress the Challenge of extreme flooD risKs
Sacramento has the highest flood risk of any major U.S. city, and many other areas in the Central Valley are at extreme risk 
of flooding. These risks are expected to grow with climate change. Although the state has recently increased investments 
in flood control infrastructure, more work is needed to keep new development out of harm’s way.

	 •	 flood management faces major funding challenges.
This sector has traditionally relied on large (65 percent) federal cost shares, but federal contributions have been lagging 
and are likely to decline in the future. State investments in flood prevention increased considerably after Hurricane 
Katrina, thanks to voter approval of two state general obligation bonds. These investments are important, but the 
available funds ($5 billion) fall far short of estimated needs (more than $17 billion in the Central Valley alone). Increasing 
local contributions can be difficult, given that local assessments require voter approval.

state has sUrPasseD the feDeral goVernment in flooD inVestments

SOURCES: U.S. Army Corps of Engineers; Governors’ Budgets .
NOTES: Figure includes spending on operations, maintenance and new investments. State spending dipped in the 

late 2000s because bond sales were limited by the recession. Data are in fiscal years (2009 = 2009–2010).



 •	 local governments have few incentives to limit flood risk exposure.
A 2003 court decision made the state liable for damage from failure of most Central Valley levees, even those main-
tained by local agencies. A legislative package passed in 2007 requires that locals make land-use decisions that will 
reduce flood risk to new homes in the Central Valley, but implementation is still several years off. Moreover, it is 
unclear whether climate change will be taken into account in setting new rules. 

 • residents also have few incentives to limit flood risk exposure.
As long as buildings are located behind levees deemed to provide protection against a “100-year flood,” there is no  
requirement to disclose flood risks to residents at the time of sale, even though many areas would face serious flooding  
if levees were breached. Within the Central Valley, the state recently began to send annual flood risk notices to land-
owners in these zones—a positive step. Few Californians hold flood insurance, which is required only in areas with 
extreme flood risk. Fifty-seven percent of Californians are very (28 percent) or somewhat (29 percent) concerned that 
flood risks will increase with climate change (PPIC Statewide Survey, July 2011).  

looKing aheaD
California has the tools to help secure a safe and reliable water supply, improve conditions for aquatic species, and reduce 
flood risks. In recent years, water managers have made significant progress toward these goals. But the challenges are 
increasing with population growth and climate change. 

In the final months of 2009, the state legislature passed a comprehensive package of water legislation that begins to 
address some key issues. For example, groundwater basins will now have to be monitored throughout California, and 
penalties for illegal diversions of surface water have been strengthened, as have staffing resources to enforce water rights. 
In addition, a new governance structure for the Delta sets the stage for more integrated management of this critical 
region. The legislation also requires per capita conservation targets for urban water users and better measurement by 
agricultural water users. Stakeholder resistance to state oversight weakened the legislation considerably in the final weeks 
of negotiations. Nevertheless, these are important first steps toward more sustainable management of California’s water. 

The package includes an $11.14 billion bond measure. Concerns about weak voter support during the economic downturn 
led the legislature to delay putting it on the ballot until November 2012. Whether or not voters approve the bond, the state 
will need to find ways to pay for water infrastructure and for critical improvements in aquatic habitat. Local funding will 
need to increase under any circumstances. If public policy discussions focus solely on the water bond, the state will miss an  
opportunity to build on the other reforms.

In short, the legislative package is a good beginning. Increased momentum in policy reform—coupled with new invest-
ments—is essential to the state’s future. Some changes will be politically difficult. The following issues still require sustained 
attention. 

the Delta. A peripheral canal or tunnel has the best potential for safeguarding the Delta’s environment while maintaining 
water supply reliability. But this solution requires solid policies on governance, finance, and mitigation for Delta land-
owners and residents. Given the extreme environmental degradation of this region, water users must be prepared to take 
less water from the Delta, at least until endangered fish populations recover. 

water efficiency. Better pricing policies—such as tiered water rates with higher prices for greater use—can heighten 
incentives to conserve. 



The Public Policy Institute of California is dedicated to informing and improving public policy in California through independent, objective, nonpartisan research. 
We are a private operating foundation. We do not take or support positions on any ballot measure or on any local, state, or federal legislation, nor do we endorse, 
support, or oppose any political parties or candidates for public office. Research publications reflect the views of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the 
views of the staff, officers, or Board of Directors of the Public Policy Institute of California. 

Public Policy Institute of California
500 Washington Street, Suite 600
San Francisco, CA 94111
T 415 291 4400   F 415 291 4401   

PPIC Sacramento Center
Senator Office Building
1121 L Street, Suite 801
Sacramento, CA 95814
T 916 440 1120   F 916 440 1121   

www.ppic.org

we invite you to dig deeper at ppic.org. related PPiC resources include:
Transitions for the Delta Economy
Managing California Water: From Conflict to Reconciliation
California Water Myths
Paying for Infrastructure: California’s Choices
Comparing Futures for the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta
Water for Growth: California’s New Frontier

Contact a PPiC expert:
Ellen Hanak

this publication is part of PPiC’s Planning for a better future project.

groundwater management. Better basin management is a prerequisite to realizing the significant potential of groundwater 
banking. Many groundwater basins have effective local management protocols, especially in Southern California and Santa 
Clara County. But progress is needed elsewhere. 

flood risk exposure. To reduce risks to new development, state floodplain mapping should account for climate change and 
increasing flood risks. To boost homeowner awareness, the risks of living behind levees should be disclosed statewide, building 
on the new policy in the Central Valley, and flood insurance requirements should perhaps be strengthened. More forward-
looking federal policies will also be needed to address changing flood risks.  

Climate change. Higher water temperatures and sea level rise will alter aquatic habitat in significant but largely unexplored 
ways. Environmental laws will require that water users respond to these changes with potentially costly management actions 
(e.g., changing reservoir operations). Anticipating the likely changes would allow the design of more cost-effective responses.

The series is funded by PPIC’s Donor Circle
v0212

http://www.ppic.org/main/home.asp
http://www.ppic.org/main/home.asp
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=913
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=944
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=890
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=863
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=810
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=429
http://www.ppic.org/main/bio.asp?i=72
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=895
http://www.ppic.org/main/home.asp
http://www.ppic.org/main/ca2025.asp


WORKFORCE
CALIFORNIA

 Projected demand

 Projected supply

No high school 
diploma

High school 
diploma

Bachelor’s 
degree or more

  
50  –

–
40  –

  –
30  –

  –
20  –

  –
10  –

  –
0   –

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f w
or

kf
or

ce

– – – –

SOURCE: PPIC projections.

BY 2025, DEMAND FOR COLLEGE-EDUCATED WORKERS WILL OUTSTRIP THE SUPPLY

CALIFORNIA FACES A SKILLS GAP
California’s education system is not keeping up with the changing demands of the state’s economy—soon, California 
will face a shortage of skilled workers. Projections to 2025 suggest that the economy will continue to need more— 
and more highly educated—workers, but that the state will not be able to meet that demand. If current trends persist, 
in 2025 only 35 percent of working-age adults in California will have at least a bachelor’s degree but 41 percent of 
jobs will require at least a bachelor’s degree. This equates to a shortfall of one million college graduates. Substantial 
improvements in educational outcomes are needed to meet the demands of tomorrow’s economy and ensure the 
economic prosperity of Californians. Failure to make improvements will result in a less-productive economy, lower 
incomes for residents, less tax revenue for the state, and more dependence on social services. 

POPULATION TRENDS COLLIDE WITH GAPS IN ECONOMIC DEMAND 

	 • California’s economy increasingly demands more highly educated workers.
For decades, California employers have needed more workers with college degrees. This shift toward more highly 
educated workers has occurred as a result of changes both within and across industries.

 • The supply of college graduates will not keep up with demand.
Two demographic trends will work against future increases in the number of college graduates. First, the baby 
boomers—a well educated group—will reach retirement age, and for the first time large numbers of college 
graduates will leave the workforce. Second, the population is shifting toward groups with historically lower levels 
of educational attainment. In particular, Latinos—who now make up the largest group of young adults—have 
historically had low rates of college completion. And there will not be enough newcomers to California—from 
abroad or from other states—to close the skills gap. 

http://www.ppic.org/main/home.asp


W
ag

e 
ga

p 
be

tw
ee

n 
co

lle
ge

 a
nd

 
hi

gh
 s

ch
oo

l g
ra

du
at

es
 (%

)

100 –
–

80 –
–

60 –
–

40 –
–

20 –
–

0 –

 1980

 1990

 2000

 2006

– – – – –        California              U.S.                             California U.S.

              Men  Women

	 •	 Higher education is largely a public endeavor in California.
More than four of every five college students in California are enrolled in one of the state’s three public education 
systems: the community colleges, the California State University, or the University of California. Three of every four 
bachelor’s degrees awarded annually come from either CSU or UC.

	 •	 Large numbers of California’s high school graduates attend college . . .
More than 60 percent of California’s high school graduates enroll in college within a year of completing high school. 
Most go to community colleges (35 percent)—open access, widespread geographic distribution, and relatively low 
fees make California’s community colleges especially popular. Compared to other states, California’s college-bound 
high school graduates are more likely to enroll in community colleges than in four-year colleges or universities. 

	 •	 . . . but many never earn a degree.
Lack of preparation for college-level work and lack of financial resources impede many students’ ability to move 
ahead in the higher education system. Only about one in ten community college students transfer to a four-year uni-
versity. Even among those taking transfer-eligible courses, only about one in four eventually succeeds in transferring. 
About half of CSU students graduate within six years of entering as freshmen. Completion rates for transfer students 
are similar to those of other CSU juniors, with about three in four transfer students obtaining bachelor’s degrees. 
Graduation rates are much higher in the UC system, with four of every five students earning a degree within six years 
of entering university.

 

	 •	 Most Californians believe that a college degree is critical for success . . . 
Almost 60 percent of adults believe that a college education is necessary for success in today’s work world. Latinos 
are especially likely to hold this view, with 73 percent believing in the value of a college education.

	 •	 . . . and they are right.
Census Bureau data show that the wages of college graduates are about 90 percent higher than the wages of workers 
with only a high school diploma. The value of a college degree has grown rapidly over the past quarter century, and 
in the current economic downturn, unemployment rates are far lower for college graduates than for adults with less 
education.

CALIFORNIA COLLEGE GRADUATES EARN MORE, AND THE GAP IS WIDENING

SOURCE: D. Reed, California’s Future Workforce (PPIC, 2008).



25

20

15

10

5

0

U
ne

m
pl

oy
m

en
t r

at
e 

(%
)

19.7

14.5

11.5

9.2

6.5

Less than a 
high school

diploma 

High school
diploma 

Some college,
no degree 

Associate
degree

Bachelor’s degree
or higher

LOOKING AHEAD
California is facing a serious shortfall in its supply of college-educated workers. In a future with fewer college-educated 
adults, unemployment rates will be higher and wages will be lower. Improving the educational attainment of the state’s 
young adults will foster greater individual success and increase economic growth. 

	 •	 Modest improvements can result in substantial gains.
Gradual increases in college enrollment rates, a 20 percent improvement in transfer rates, and an improvement in 
completion rates at CSU would, together, reduce the skills gap by one-half by 2025. 

	 •	 Reductions in higher education funding will make things worse.
Without concerted efforts to improve college attendance and graduation in California, the state’s economic future 
will be much less bright. Shortchanging education for quick budget fixes could seriously shortchange California’s 
economic future. One alternative would be to increase fees so that students from higher-income families pay more 
in fees and increase aid so that students from lower-income families face a lower financial burden.

	 •	 Alternative forms of postsecondary training are needed.
Because it is unlikely that the state will be able to completely close the skills gap by increasing the number of 
graduates with bachelor’s degrees, other forms of postsecondary training and workforce skills development are 
essential to the state’s future.

UNEMPLOYMENT RATES ARE MUCH LOWER FOR COLLEGE GRADUATES 

SOURCE: October 2010 Current Population Survey, restricted to California residents.



The Public Policy Institute of California is dedicated to informing and improving public policy in California through independent, objective, nonpartisan research. 
We are a private operating foundation. We do not take or support positions on any ballot measure or on any local, state, or federal legislation, nor do we endorse, 
support, or oppose any political parties or candidates for public office. Research publications reflect the views of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the 
views of the staff, officers, or Board of Directors of the Public Policy Institute of California. 

Public Policy Institute of California
500 Washington Street, Suite 600
San Francisco, CA 94111
T 415 291 4400   F 415 291 4401   

PPIC Sacramento Center
Senator Office Building
1121 L Street, Suite 801
Sacramento, CA 95814
T 916 440 1120   F 916 440 1121   

www.ppic.org

The series is funded by PPIC’s Donor Circle
v0212

We invite you to dig deeper at ppic.org. Related PPIC resources include: 
Higher Education in California: New Goals for the Master Plan
Educating California: Choices for the Future
Closing the Gap: Meeting California’s Need for College Graduates
California’s Future Workforce: Will There Be Enough College Graduates?
PPIC Statewide Survey: Californians and Higher Education

Contact a PPIC expert:
Hans Johnson

This publication is part of PPIC’s Planning for a Better Future project.

http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=916
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=891
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=835
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=809
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=999
http://www.ppic.org/main/bio.asp?i=132
http://www.ppic.org/main/publication.asp?i=895
http://www.ppic.org/main/home.asp
http://www.ppic.org/main/ca2025.asp
http://www.ppic.org/main/home.asp


Public Policy Institute of California
500 Washington Street, Suite 600

San Francisco, California 94111
t 415 291 4400   f 415 291 4401

PPIC Sacramento Center

1121 L Street, Suite 801
Sacramento, California 95814
t 916 440 1120   f 916 440 1121

http://www.ppic.org/main/ca2025.asp

	PC Agenda 4-17-2012.pdf
	HUGHSON PLANNING COMMISSION
	A G E N D A  
	APRIL 17, 2012

	1 PC MINUTES 3-20-2012
	HUGHSON PLANNING COMMISSION
	MINUTES
	MARCH  20, 2012

	Methodist Church Design Review staff report
	Methodists Design Review Reso 2012-04
	Rendered Proposed Site Plan
	Proposed Site Plan
	Rendered Proposed Elevations
	Proposed Exterior Elevations
	4 Jobs-Housing Balance 2005
	Sheet1

	5 Life Expectancy by zip code
	6 Planning for a Better Future CA 2025
	0212_brief kit folder cover with sticker
	0212 Budget_web
	0212 Climate change_web
	0212 Economy_web
	0212 Education_web
	0212 Housing_web
	0212 Population_web
	0212 Water_web
	0212 Workforce_web


